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1813–2008
Celebrating Our 195th Birthday

A message of support from our Patron
Her Excellency Professor Marie Bashir AC CVO, Governor of NSW, Patron of The 
Benevolent Society writes:

“It is a great pleasure to extend warmest congratulations to The Benevolent Society on 
the occasion of 195 years of care and support for Australians of all ages and diverse 
backgrounds, who have been affected by difficult times and disadvantage, often 
accompanied by poor health. This celebration provides an opportunity to express 
our appreciation to a noble, and very Australian, institution and to reflect upon their 
achievements within a tradition of compassion and innovation, anticipating social trends 
with effective intervention.”

We would love to hear from you!
To help us celebrate our 195 years in the community, please send us stories about your experiences with 
The Benevolent Society to:

195 Years, The Benevolent Society, 188 Oxford Street, Paddington NSW 2021

or email: whereareyounow@bensoc.org.au

Alternatively you can make a donation through our website: www.bensoc.org.au.
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This financial report covers The Benevolent Society (‘the Society’).  The financial report is presented in the Australian 
currency. 
 
The Society is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.  Its registered place of 
business is: 

 
The Benevolent Society 
Level 1, 188 Oxford Street 
Paddington NSW 2021 
 

A description of the nature of the Society’s operations and its principal activities is included in the review of 
operations and activities in the Directors’ report. 

 
The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 20 October 2008. The Society has the power to 
amend and reissue the financial report. 
 
Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely and complete.  All press releases, 
financial reports and other information are available on our website: www.bensoc.org.au. 
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Notice of annual general meeting The annual general meeting of the Society 
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 time 11.00 am 
date 19 November 2008 
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 (02) 9339 8000 
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About us 

Our identity  We are social pioneers and innovators. 

Our purpose is to create caring and inclusive communities and a just society. 

Our vision is that every person is healthy, safe, connected and has a meaningful and productive role in their community. 

About us 
The Benevolent Society is Australia’s oldest charity. Established in 1813 we have been caring for Australians and their 
communities for nearly 200 years. We are a secular, non-profit, independent organisation working to bring about positive social 
change in response to community needs. Our 780 staff and 900 volunteers support more than 16,000 children and adults each 
year in New South Wales and in Queensland. We deliver 82 programs from 42 locations to support people from all backgrounds 
including Indigenous Australians and people from culturally and linguistically diverse communities.  
 
• We work to ensure children are nurtured and safe with their families, protected from abuse and neglect. 
• We help women make positive futures for themselves and their families and support them to move on from domestic 

violence.  
• We help older people to age well and to live independently for as long as possible with dignity and respect.  
• We support people who are carers of a loved one. 
• We provide information, counselling and support for people affected by adoption. 
• We improve the financial skills and knowledge of people who are vulnerable to financial exclusion, through our financial 

education programs. 
• Our social leadership and community development programs help people to drive change in their own communities. 
• We speak on a diverse range of social issues including early childhood development, child protection, carer respite, services 

for older people and women’s health. 
• We create new lines of thought, activity or methods of intervention to tackle the social issues facing Australia. We  focus our 

efforts on pioneering creative ways to make communities strong and inclusive. 
 

 
Our aim is to create communities that are healthy and safe, connected, productive and participatory, rich in cultural and 
recreational activities and that are just and fair. We believe that building stronger communities will help to reduce social and 
economic disadvantage. 

Our values 
Optimism 
We are hopeful that even the most complex social issues can be solved and we work towards the best possible results for clients 
and their communities. 
 
Integrity 
We are an ethical, trustworthy and responsible organisation. Those who come into contact with the Society will experience us as 
open, fair and reliable. 
 
Respect 
We show regard and appreciation for people from all walks of life and honour human difference and diversity. 
 
Collaboration 
We work jointly with others as we believe that together we can tackle the things that prevent communities and society from being 
caring and just. 
 
Effectiveness 
Our efforts result in us reaching and fulfilling our organisational purpose. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
To learn more about us visit our website www.bensoc.org.au.  

For more about our history, read “A Very Present Help, caring for Australians since 1813”  by Ron Rathbone,  
available in the Mitchell Library, NSW. 

 



The Benevolent Society 

 5 2008 Annual Financial Report

 

President’s report 

President’s report  
 

On behalf of the Board I am pleased to present the Society’s Financial Statements for the year to 30 June 2008. As custodians 
of the Society’s financial health, it is important for the Board not only to ensure that the financial affairs of the Society are 
governed appropriately, with the necessary systems, procedures and risk mitigants, but that the financial reporting provides 
Members and supporters with all the information they may reasonably require in order to satisfy themselves of the rigour and 
quality of the Society’s financial management. 
 
These Financial Statements have been prepared with that objective in mind. As a learning, evolving organisation we have a 
desire for continual improvement. Should a reader of these Statements feel that we could add information that would assist in
their gaining a proper understanding of what lies behind the numbers and ratios, we would be pleased to hear that opinion.  
 
For the past decade the Society has been in transformation since its decision to hand the management of The Royal Hospital
for Women to the Government. This period has seen a confirmation of the purpose of the Society, “to create caring and 
inclusive communities and a just society”, and our identity as “social pioneers and innovators”. In the past five years, as a result
of rigorous discussion between management and the Board, the shape of the Society has changed quite significantly. 
 
We have shifted our focus from the provision of services to particular client groups to a focus on providing a comprehensive 
mix of services in the communities in which we work. We have expanded the types of service provided and, in the past three 
years, have significantly extended our geographical reach and influence within NSW and into Queensland. We have 
acknowledged our role as advocates and influencers in the evolving social landscape and have increased our allocation of 
resources to research and evaluation, as we know this will lead to better outcomes for those we serve. All this requires careful 
and prudent management which should be reflected in the Financial Statements. 
 
Some factors are directly within our control, such as resource allocation, employment practices and risk management. Others,
such as financial market fluctuations are not, requiring sensible strategies and appropriate policies regarding capital 
management if the future needs of the Society are to be properly safeguarded. The Statements reflect an organisation that is in
a growth, expansionary phase. I commend them to you.  

 
Bill Webster 
President 
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Treasurer’s report 

Treasurer’s report  
 
This is my third report as the Society’s Treasurer and I am pleased to report that the organisation is in a very healthy financial
position. I have provided below a brief overview of the financial results for the year ended 30 June 2008. 
 
The trend for double digit growth over the past seven years has continued with this year’s revenue growth at 13%. Revenue 
from continuing operations increased 14%. 
 
During the year we completed the establishment of the early intervention children’s programs known as Brighter Futures in 
eight regions of NSW. We also commenced the establishment of an integrated Early Years Centre in the North Gold Coast of 
Queensland and established three new programs assisting people with severe mental illness in Armidale, Wingecarribee and 
Liverpool. These new programs increased our revenue by $6 million and broadened our geographic spread of services into 
rural and regional NSW in some severely disadvantaged communities. We were also successful in our tender to commence 
Out of Home Care to provide care and support services for children and young people who are unable to live with their birth 
families in rural and metropolitan NSW. These programs will start operating in the next financial year. 
 
During the year we also commenced the implementation of our strategic decision to cease operating our nursing home and 
hostels. Our aged care hostel at Bondi was closed and we are actively seeking interested parties to take over the operation of
our remaining aged care facilities. The costs associated with closing the Bondi facility were borne this financial year. The 
Society will also close its Maurice O’Sullivan child care centre in Bondi in January 2009 as a result of a decision to focus more 
on children and families in disadvantaged communities. 
 
In addition to establishing new programs the Society directed considerable management time and financial resources towards 
exploring development options for a new model of housing and care for older people at our Bondi site. The Board approved the 
Apartments for Life proposal in February 2008 and a Development Application was lodged with Waverley Council in May 2008.
 
The financial position can be attributed to a number of factors. The expenditure on community services increased by 17% to 
$40,799,000. This increased expenditure was funded by increases in government support, private and corporate support and 
income from our investment portfolio. 
 
The increase in government support was primarily from the NSW Government for our Brighter Futures children’s programs as 
previously outlined and Federal Government for the mental health community programs. Government support also increased 
in our community ageing and carer programs primarily in Southern Sydney. 
 
Private and corporate support increased to expand the reach of Social Leadership Australia and increased support from ANZ
Banking group expanded the scope of the Financial Literacy programs. 
 
We are expecting revenue growth to continue during the 2008–09 financial year as we commence the Out of Home Care 
services supported by the NSW Government.  
 
Our financial investments decreased in value by 9% as a result of the decline in global financial markets.  However this result 
should be viewed over the long term horizon taking into account outstanding returns achieved over the past 6 years. 
 
It is also worth noting that the Society’s total funds decreased by 7% to $84,830,000. This was primarily due to the decrease in
the value of our investment portfolio. Our investments and the income that they generate are extremely important as they 
enable the Society to continue to pursue its future direction through the current three year Strategic Plan. We are currently 
examining ways to grow our investment capital through philanthropy. 
 
These financial results leave the Society in a healthy financial position. 

 

Tanya Gilerman 
Treasurer 
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CEO’s report  
 
 
An exciting expansionary phase is currently underway at The Benevolent Society. As the President highlighted in his report 
there have been significant and innovative changes in the organisation over the past decade and the growth is taking us in new 
and challenging directions: all of which are being driven by our current Strategic Plan for 2006 – 2009.   
 
The past financial year was Year Two of the Strategic Plan and the main achievements are summarized on pages 10 and 11 of 
this report.  As you can see our services have spread across New South Wales and interstate.  This is a major strategic shift for
the organisation as in the past our services were based principally in the Sydney region. 
 
All our services have expanded:  in particular, those supporting young children and their families.  We are placing a greater 
emphasis on evidence-informed practice and are committed to continual improvement and innovation.  Our Apartments for Life
project at Bondi is a great example of how we are helping to lead the way in new models of housing and care for older people.
 
The Benevolent Society has re-invented itself continually through its 195 year history and this tradition inspires us to develop 
better ways to address changing community needs. 
 
One of the ways we are doing this is by placing greater emphasis on research and advocacy to bring about social change in 
Australia.  We have invested in our capacity to influence social policy thinking at the national level. And through major projects 
such as Bridging the Gap we will contribute to a richer understanding of how to build a more socially inclusive country. 
 
Our innovative leadership programs are designed to engage the corporate, government and community sectors in these efforts
and we are continuing to expand the programs which will increasingly be delivered across Australia. 
 
These exciting new developments and others outlined in this report will continue to be a feature of our next Strategic Plan for 
2009 -2012. 
 
This financial report aims to present you with information on the foundations that we have built to sustain such innovation and
change.  It indicates how we will pursue our purpose of creating caring and inclusive communities and a just society with a solid 
control on our finances and a commitment to transparency and accountability to our funders, supporters and the wider 
community. 
 
 
Richard Spencer 
CEO 
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Programs and partners 
The Society acknowledges and thanks local, state and federal government departments, businesses, community partners, 
trusts and foundations and individuals for their contributions during the 2008 financial year, including: 

 
Child protection 
 
Anita Belgiorno-Nettis 
Bestest Foundation  
Department of Community Services 
Department of Families, Housing, Community Services &  
Lady Gowrie Child Centre 
Shula Endrey-Walder 
Maria Evans 
Aileen Kadison 
Margaret Pemberton Foundation 
Mary Potter Foundation 
Trish Murray 
Myer Community Fund 
Glynn O’Neill 
Jenny Rose 
South Eastern Sydney and Illawarra Area Health Service 
Sydney South West Area Health Service 
Helen Tribe 
Marita West 
 
Early intervention 
 
ABN Amro 
Camden Council 
City of Botany Bay 
City of Sydney 
Mallesons Stephen Jacques 
Robert Christie Foundation 
South Eastern Sydney and Illawarra Area Health Service 
 
Brighter futures  
Department of Community Services 
Bankstown Children's Educational Centre 
Bathurst Children's Services (NSW) Pty Ltd 
Bathurst Women’s Housing Program 
Cabramatta Community Centre 
Cessnock Family Support Service Inc 
Fairfield City Council 
Fairfield Migrant Resources 
Glenroi Heights Public School 
Good Beginning Australia Ltd 
Gosford City Council 
Kelso Public School 
KU Children's Services 
Lithgow Information & Neighbourhood Centre 
Liverpool City Council 
Liverpool Migrant Resource Centre Inc 
Maitland Family Day Care Scheme Inc 
Maitland Family Support Scheme Inc 
Mary Moore 
Mercy Community Services 
Mudgee Family Support Service 
Muloobinba Aboriginal Corporation 
Northern Sydney & Central Coast Area Health 
Orange City Council 
Port Stephens Family Support Services Inc 
Rotary Club of Ryde 
Singleton Family Support Scheme Inc 
South Eastern Sydney and Illawarra Area Health Service 
Tamworth Family Support Services 

Telstra Foundation 
Tenterfield Medical Centre 
The Walter & Eliza Hall Trust 
Towri Aboriginal Corporation 
Upper Hunter Community Services Inc. 
Walcha Council 
 
Early years 
 
Childcare Centres 
Department of Community Services 
Family Assistance Office  
 
Early years centres  
Catholic Care 
Department of Communities, Queensland 
Department of Community Services 
Department of Families, Housing, Community Services &  
Indigenous Affairs 
Kalwun Development Corporation 
Samaritans 
 
Communities for Kids 
Department of Community Services 
The Cancer Council NSW 
 
Partnerships in early childhood 
Department of Families, Housing, Community Services & 
Indigenous Affairs 
Uniting Care Burnside 
 
Wheely Good Fun 
Evan Curran 
Jacqui Erskine 
Lynn Fern 
Bestest Foundation 
Sara Lane 
Holly Smith 
Mission Australia 
Morgan Stanley 
Sydney Opera House 
 
Women’s health & domestic violence 
 
Department of Families, Housing, Community Services & 
Indigenous Affairs 
Sydney South West Area Health Service 
The Cancer Council NSW 
Wollondilly Shire Council 
Department of Corrective Services 
 
Indigenous services 
 
Department of Community Services 
Department of Families, Housing, Community Services & 
Indigenous Affairs 
Department of Education, Employment & Workplace 
relations 
Freedman Foundation 



The Benevolent Society 
Programs and Partners 

(continued) 
 

 9 2008 Annual Financial Report

 

Community development 
 
Communities for children 
Australian Breast Feeding Association 
Berkeley Vale Neighbourhood Centre Assoc 
Campbelltown City Council 
Central Coast Health 
Central Coast Community Women’s Health Centre 
Department of Community Services 
Department of Families, Housing, Community Services & 
Indigenous Affairs 
Department of Housing 
Frazer Howard and Partners 
Macarthur Diversity Services Inc 
Mingara recreation club 
Spirited Communities Pty Ltd 
Telex Hearing Care 
The Junction works Inc 
Uniting Care Burnside 
Wyong Shire Council 
Yarran Early Intervention Services Inc 
YWCA NSW 
 
Financial literacy 
ANZ Banking Group Ltd 
 
Men’s support 
Department of Community Services 
San  Remo Neighbourhood Centre Inc 
 
Well being & mental health 
 
Department of Families, Housing, Community Services & 
Indigenous Affairs 
 
Post adoption 
Department of Community Services 
 
Supporting carers, frail and older people at home 
 
Department of Ageing, Disability & Home Care 
Department of Community Services 
Department of Families, Housing, Community Services & 
Indigenous Affairs 
Department of Health & Ageing 
Northern Sydney & Central Coast Area Health 
Social Ventures Australia 
 
Help at home 
Australian Department of Education, Science & Training 
Department of Ageing, Disability & Home Care 
Department of Health & Ageing 
Penrith City Council 
 
Respite 
Department of Ageing, Disability & Home Care 
Department of Families, Housing, Community Services & 
Indigenous Affairs 
Lorna Davis 

Residential services for older people 
 
BAT Australia 
Department of Health & Ageing 
 
Social policy, research, & influence 
 
Australian Centre for Child Protection 
Australian Research Alliance for Children & Youth 
Department of Premier and Cabinet, NSW 
Gosford City Council 
Housing NSW Community & Tenant Participation 
Care Leavers of Australia Network 
Department of Community Services 
Department of Families, Housing, Community Services & 
Indigenous Affairs 
John Barnes Foundation 
Management Alternatives Pty Ltd 
Social Policy Research Centre, University of NSW 
 
Social leadership 
 
ANZ Banking Group Ltd 
Anne Coombs  
David Hardie 
Allen Harroothunian 
Horizon Foundation 
Johnson & Johnson Medical Australia/NZ 
Magical Learning 
Maple-Brown Abbott Ltd 
Rio Tinto Aboriginal Fund 
Andy Small 
John Valder 
St Vincent’s Private Hospital 
  
Corporate partners 
 
Baker & McKenzie 
Commonwealth Bank 
Goldman Sachs, JBWere 
Jardine Lloyd Thompson 
KPMG 
MLC 
PricewaterhouseCoopers 
Russell Investments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Thank you 
 
The Society acknowledges those that have given and wish to 
remain anonymous.  We also acknowledge all other general 
donors and Estates that have given throughout the past year.

 
 

To support us visit our website www.bensoc.org.au, or call our Toll free donations hotline on 1800 819 633. 
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Strategic outcomes and highlights of 2007–08 
In 2004 we embarked on our Future Directions journey, a process that helped us identify our purpose. This led to the 
development of our three year Strategic Plan 2006–2009, which sets out the activities and outcomes we are seeking to achieve
during this period through four key strategies.  
 
2007–08 was the second year of our plan – below is a summary of what we achieved in each of our four strategy areas. 
 
Strategy 1: Create and deliver leading edge Programs and services 

Our Programs and services are creative and pioneering. This means they are flexible, aligned with purpose, informed by 
research and evolving to meet changing community needs. 
 
• Our significant growth in rural NSW and Queensland has established our presence in many new areas – from the 

Central West of NSW to the North Gold Coast in Queensland. We were successful in securing significant new funding to 
enable us to expand the range of programs we provide. 

 
• We have established mental health services for people experiencing severe mental illness in Armidale, Liverpool and 

Wingecarribee and will seek to grow these services in other areas of NSW.  
 

• We have also secured funding to establish Out of Home Care services for children and young people from 2009 in the 
Sydney Metropolitan, New England, Far North Coast, Central West and the Far West areas of NSW. Our new Out of 
Home Care services will see us recruiting 150 new staff to support 720 children and young people at risk. 

 
• Our transition away from our residential aged care facilities remains a major focus and we are preparing to invest $64 

million in our innovative Apartments for Life project at Ocean Street in Bondi NSW. This initiative will enable older people 
to live in their own homes throughout older age, connected to and contributing to their communities and supported by 
services when needed. Forty per cent of apartments will be set aside as affordable housing for pensioners and low income 
individuals and couples.  

 
• We have started a unique 10 year, place-based community capacity building project called Bridging the 

Gap. The project targets the two NSW suburbs of Bankstown and Toukley. 
 

• Increased support from the ANZ Banking group for our financial education programs Saver Plus and 
MoneyMinded has enabled us to expand the reach of these programs. We have now trained more than 400 
MoneyMinded facilitators in Greater Sydney and in rural and regional areas across NSW and into southern 
Queensland and are working with more than 200 people through the matched savings and financial education 
program Saver Plus. 

 
• We have established two integrated Child and Family Centres in the Hunter region of NSW and the North Gold Coast 

region of Queensland. We are now tendering for further federal funding to develop similar centres throughout regional and
remote NSW and in Queensland. 

 
• Our social leadership programs are flourishing, and now include partnerships with the National Australia Bank, 

Indigenous women and the NSW Premier’s Department. 
 

• We have completed the establishment of the Brighter Futures early intervention programs for vulnerable families with 
children 0–8 years. The number families we are working with increased by 33% in the last six months, with 15% of carers 
engaged with the program being Aboriginal and 24% from a culturally and linguistically diverse background.  

 
• As part of our evaluation work, we undertook a client satisfaction survey which has given us important feedback for 

service improvement. The survey revealed that our clients are very positive about the care they receive from our staff and
volunteers. 

 
Strategy 2: Grow knowledge and intellectual capacity about social issues in Australia 

We are a knowledgeable and informed organisation, good at learning and sharing ideas. We are aware of emerging social 
trends and our research agenda contributes to society’s understanding of these issues. 
• Our research and advocacy agenda is leading to new partnerships and research opportunities, including: 

o work on children’s resilience (with Barnados UK, Stirling University, Scotland, and The Australian Centre for 
Child Protection) 

o a study on children’s experiences of poverty (with the NSW Commission for Children and Young People and 
RMIT) 

o an investigation into the social inclusion of children in community life (with the Australian National University, the
University of Western Sydney and NAPCAN).  
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o we are entering into a partnership agreement with The Brotherhood of St Laurence to conduct research on social
policy in ageing.  

 
• Our programs have benefited from the learning’s of one of our Senior Managers who undertook a three-month 

Churchill Fellowship studying evidenced based parenting programs, landmark early years programs and 
integrated children’s centres in the United States, England, Wales, Scotland, Italy and the Netherlands in late 
2007. 

 
• Through a comprehensive program of professional development, our staff are learning more about social issues in 

Australia. We have implemented an Aboriginal Recruitment and Retention Strategy to increase our understanding and 
respect for Indigenous issues across our organisation and to increase the number of Aboriginal people using our services. 
A number of cultural respect training workshops have been held for management and staff and many of our programs now
include identified Indigenous staff positions. 

 
• Indicators of success include our involvement in the Australian Research Alliance for Children and Youth (ARACY) at a 

national level and our work internally on implementing evidence-based parenting programs and evidence-informed 
community care. 

 

Strategy 3: Advocate and influence on key social issues and solutions 

We have a clear and coordinated approach to advocacy and influence and are recognised as a significant voice on important 
social issues. 
 
• We have built our capacity to influence social issues by increasing research resources and having a higher profile at 

national and international symposia and conferences. Over the past year staff from across the Society have presented in
the United Kingdom, Taiwan, Korea, India and China on diverse topics including new models of working with older people,
early childhood interventions, children’s experiences of poverty, knowledge brokering, volunteering and program 
evaluation. 

 
• We have made connections with key decision makers in NSW and Queensland, made submissions to inquiries (such

as the Child Protection Inquiry in NSW) and secured membership on a number of high-profile state and national 
committees.  

 
• We have had an increasing media profile as well as involvement in a number of high level forums such as the federal 

government’s consultations regarding the development of a National Child Protection Framework.  
 

• Meetings with key influencers such as politicians, their advisors, and senior government officials have been 
strategically targeted in the area of our four priority social issues. 

 
• We have focused on building networks and leveraging existing research and service development projects such as 

Children’s Lived Experience of Poverty, our Apartments for Life project and our Partnerships in Early Childhood project. 
 

Strategy 4: Build a thriving organisation 

We have systems and mechanisms in place that support our work and enable us to implement our strategies effectively. 
 
• We published a special report in The Sydney Morning Herald to celebrate our 195th birthday providing an overview of 

our activities and achievements over the years. 
 
• We have over 900 volunteers and also engage many community members as part of program delivery who 

make an invaluable contribution to our work.  
 
• We finalised the implementation of a centralised IT platform and commenced the implementation of key business 

systems including business continuity planning, human resources technology, and mobile computing. 
 

The Voice Project, a staff survey undertaken in October 2007, demonstrated that our employees have a high level of 
understanding of, and alignment with, the organisation’s mission, values and purpose. 
 
 
 
 

 
To read our full “Strategic Plan 2006–2009” visit our website www.bensoc.org.au.   

You can also find “The Benevolent Society’s Strategic Plan Year 3 activities” there. 
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Research and evaluation  
Our research and evaluation work is integral to shaping our organisational strategy. It informs our service delivery, helps us
grow our knowledge about social issues, and provides us with credible and timely evidence to influence practice and policy in
Australia. 
 
Evaluation 
One of the outcomes we are working towards is to rigorously evaluate what we do, both service by service and as an 
organisation. We are making good progress in this area but still have a long way to go. 
 
Evaluation work is now being undertaken in almost all of our child and family services. Some services are still in the planning 
stage while others are well underway. We piloted an evaluation approach with our three Scarba child protection services, for 
example, which have now been collecting data around client outcomes for 17 months. We are also developing an evaluation 
framework for our community care programs for older people and will be piloting this with two services during 2008–09.  
 
We recognise that rigorous evaluation of each of our services is an ambitious outcome with the limited resources available to 
us. We are often reliant on extremely busy practitioners, many of whom have limited experience of evaluation and research
and require dedicated support at each stage of the process. 
 
Some of the key successes in this area include: 
 
• Evaluation of our Partnerships in Early Childhood program, which provides support for children, families and staff in 

childcare settings, shows significant positive results. Children have become more secure in their relationships with their
parents; staff report closer more positive relationships with children; children are demonstrating positive social and 
emotional development, and the program is highly valued by partner organisations, staff and families. 

• Our Client Satisfaction Survey found that clients of services across the organisation were very positive about the services 
they received, with 97% stating they would recommend the service to others. They also reported that staff were helpful, 
follow up on what they say they will do and show respect. 

• We have designed and implemented a Data Management System across our Brighter Futures early intervention 
services, which support children and families in eight regions of NSW. 

• We are acknowledged in the NSW non-government (NGO) sector as a leader around issues of evaluation. We have 
presented on NGO evaluation at the NSW and international Australasian Evaluation Society conferences and sit on the
Board of the Australasian Evaluation Society. 

 
Research 
We have invested more time and resources in research and evaluation this year and have developed a number of strategic 
research partnerships with universities in Australia and overseas. 
 
Highlights this year include: 
• We produced a number of key research reports in accessible formats (both print and web-based) to improve 

dissemination of our research. 
• We have undertaken internal activities such as research-to-practice projects in both the ageing and children’s areas. 
• We have initiated strategic research partnerships with universities across Australia and overseas as well organisations

such as the Brotherhood of St Laurence (ageing area) and Barnados, England and Scotland (children’s area), who have
been successful in undertaking research that leads to policy action. 

• We initiated the NSW NGO Research Forum, a bi-monthly meeting of researchers from our sector which regularly attracts 
between 20–40 participants. 

• We have presented our work at key international and national conferences and symposia. 
• We initiated Bridging the Gap, a project which aims to look at ways of building social cohesion in disadvantaged

communities. As part of this project we were successful in securing a partnership grant from the University of Western
Sydney to commence research to look at the lack of systematic evidence on overcoming disadvantage in Australia. 

 
Using data for advocacy 
Results from our evaluation and research work have been used to support our advocacy agenda and to help raise funds for
new and innovative approaches. In our oral and written submissions to the Wood Inquiry on Child Protection, for example, we 
were able to use data from our Brighter Futures evaluation work to support our arguments about improvements to the NSW
child protection system.  
 

 
 
 

 

 

You can read “The Benevolent Society’s Research Snapshot Volume 3, 2008” on our website  www.bensoc.org.au. 
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Investments 

Investments   
Our investment portfolio is vitally important to the Society’s success and to achieving our Strategic Plan. It has played a critical
role in funding the early stages of a broad innovation agenda.  The investment portfolio takes into account direct property, short
term working capital, medium term financial investments including residential bonds, and long term financial investments.  The
medium term and long term financial investments are referred to as our Endowment.  Distributions from the Endowment have 
contributed to Social Leadership Australia and other leadership programs, the creation of Social Ventures Australia, the 
Partnerships in Early Childhood project. The funding Endowment is also  contributing to the our Apartments for Life and 
Bridging the Gap projects. 
 
The short and medium term portfolio are designed to generate reliable income for the Society’s new initiatives as informed 
by the Strategic Plan. The short term portfolio is held in cash and bank bills and the medium term portfolio is structured to 
deliver a return higher than the short term portfolio but with a high degree of stability in capital value and a relatively high 
income stream. The fund managers of the medium term portfolio are MLC Investments Limited and ANZ Executors and 
Trustees Company Limited (Australian equities, debt securities and hybrids). 
 
The long term portfolio is currently structured to achieve a higher return than the medium term portfolio in order to protect the
long term real value of the Society’s endowment. The distributions from the long term portfolio are reinvested. The fund 
manager of the long term portfolio is Russell Investment Group (Balanced Fund). 
 
There is a small direct property portfolio (not purpose built and readily marketable) comprising 72% inner city commercial, 
18% eastern suburbs residential/commercial and 10% regional commercial property. These properties are either rented to 
external tenants or used by the Society to deliver community programs. These properties are valued at cost and return 6.44%
(2007: 6.66%). 
 
The five year performance of the portfolio is in line with the various mandates given to our fund managers.  
 
A challenge currently being undertaken is to grow the Endowment through private philanthropy to provide future capital and 
income streams for new initiatives that without private support would be impossible, such as Apartments for Life, Integrated 
Child and Family Centres, Social Leadership Australia and an innovation pool. 
 

Investment assets
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Our staff 

Our staff  
 
The Benevolent Society’s goal of creating caring and inclusive communities extends to our workplace. We are committed to 
creating an environment in which every staff member feels valued, is treated fairly and is recognised for their contribution to our
organisation’s success. 

 
We employ social workers, early childhood teachers, psychologists, care workers, community development workers, nurses, 
aged care workers, family support workers, researchers, child care workers, cooks, cleaners, administrators, project officers 
and support staff in 42 locations across metro, rural and regional NSW and South Queensland. 
 
In the last financial year, we undertook a staff survey conducted by Voice Project at Macquarie University to find out what our 
staff thought of working at the Society. The survey showed exceptional results across key areas of organisational performance, 
with high levels of staff engagement and a strong culture aligned with the organisation’s mission, direction and values. 
 
We have continued our strong Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) performance with a significant decline in workers 
compensation claims from 74 in 2006–07 to 46 in 2007–08, resulting in a reduction in workers compensation premiums.  We 
introduced the inaugural Health and Safety Award and launched a Wellness Project to improve the overall health and wellbeing 
of our employees. 
 
We conducted an employee retention project to review turnover rates and develop strategies to enhance retention in a 
challenging employment market. Our annualised voluntary turnover rate for 2007 was 18.76%.  This compares favourably to 
average turnover rates reported in the community sector. To increase retention of talented employees we have commenced 
several new projects in recruitment, leadership development and career management.  We instituted a new formal Recognition 
and Reward program that provides recognition of employees’ length of service. 
 
In Learning and Development, a total of 2,277 staff whole or part days were spent at a total of 513 training sessions. 
Nineteen staff accessed 807 hours (equivalent to 106 days) of study leave, and 389 staff attended 27 conferences. A particular 
focus of learning and development in 2007–08 has been Indigenous Cultural Awareness Training with 42 staff attending these 
workshops and more planned for 2008–09.  This has supported two important strategic outcomes – the implementation of our 
Indigenous Employment Strategy and the enhancement of our learning about contemporary social issues. 
 
Over 200 positions were advertised and filled at a cost of $237,781. We are reviewing our recruitment processes to ensure a 
cost effective and streamlined process that attracts quality staff. 
 
Human Resources (HR) is governed by an HR Board Sub-Committee. The Committee holds at least two meetings during the
year and addresses the core governance issues of capacity, engagement, staff utilisation, HR management standards and risk
management. 
 
In the next year we will be undertaking a major review of our employment arrangements with a view to implementing a 
Collective Agreement that will attract, retain and reward talented staff into the future. 
 
Over the past 12 months our fulltime equivalent (FTE) has remained stable. This was due to the increase in staff for Brighter 
Futures, the Early Years Centre and new mental health programs which were offset by the decrease in staff due to the closure 
of the aged care hostel at Bondi, NSW.  At June 2008 our FTE was 534 and at June 2007 FTE was 526.   
 

 
     2008 % FTE 

Female 701 90%  
Male 82 10%  
Full time 206 26% 206 
Part time 372 48% 238 
Casual 126 16% 29 
Fixed term – FT 30 4% 30 
Fixed term – PT 49 6% 31 
Total Headcount 783   
Full time 
equivalents (FTE) 534   
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For career opportunities with us, visit our website  www.bensoc.org.au 
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Our volunteers 

Our volunteers  
 
Our volunteers play a key role in our work to create caring and inclusive communities and a just society. We are very grateful 
to the more than 900 people who have volunteered their time with us during 2007–08 across a range of programs. 
 
In particular, volunteers play a key role in our Social Visiting Program and the Northern Beaches Food Service. Our 193 social 
visiting volunteers who visit people in their homes (either in the Friends Visiting Program or the Volunteer Home Visiting 
Program) provide approximately 16,000 hours of companionship and support during the year. Through Meals on Wheels and 
the Community Restaurants – part of the Northern Beaches Food Service – we have 242 volunteers who provide 
approximately 12,000 volunteer hours each year. 
 
Volunteer contributions are recognised and celebrated throughout the year. Our employees take time to formally recognise the 
efforts of volunteers and personally show appreciation. 
 
There are many other volunteer contributions that are not currently captured, including high value pro bono work from 
corporate volunteers, our Board and community development workers. With the development of a new database in 2008–09 
we will be able to more effectively track volunteer numbers and activities. 

 

 
President’s Volunteer Award 
 
Each year, the Society recognises one or more of our 
volunteers for their outstanding contribution to the wellbeing 
of the community and their untiring commitment to helping 
others.  
 
This year the recipient of the President’s Award was Bob 
Fergusson who has been volunteering since 1995. Bob has 
arranged countless social and fund raising events and has 
provided practical assistance to many residents of our aged 
care facilities. 
 
In Memoriam – Eddie Allen 

 
Eddie was a long standing volunteer at The Benevolent 
Society. He visited weekly to fill up the Lions mints at 
reception, catching up with everyone and helping with 
whatever job needed to be done. Over the years he 
expanded his volunteer circuit to include a regular monthly 
visit to the Post Adoption Resource Centre and more 
recently, PlayPower. Eddie was never happier than when he 
felt his contributions were making a difference.  
  
Eddie has long been regarded as an honorary member of 
staff. He was a very proud Life Governor of The Benevolent 
Society and also received a President’s Award for his 
contribution to our organisation and his outstanding service to 
the community.  
  
His other charitable interests included helping to source 
second hand computers for disadvantaged families and 
smaller charities. 

Eddie passed away in August 2008. He was 86. 

 
Friends Visiting Program  
 
Alicia Bubis volunteered at The Benevolent Society assisting 
Rachel with hydrotherapy.   
 
‘I saw the ad for a hydrotherapy volunteer and was interested. 
I like the water and wanted to help out.’ said Alicia. ‘Rachel is 
sight impaired and is a double amputee… Rachel has a light 
sense of being and is very lively and determined to stay 
active.’ 
 
Rachel attended physio sessions at the Prince of Wales 
hospital and Alicia helped her in and out of the water with the 
aid of a lift. ‘We used to meet and go to class and then go 
home for a cup of tea.  When the classes at Prince of Wales 
finished we did not want to stop so we found a pool in 
Maroubra and continued to meet.’ 
 
Alicia could be the ‘eyes’ for Rachel. ‘Rachel pushes herself 
in the pool and it is great to see her improve.’ Alicia said it has 
been a rewarding experience for both of them. ‘I really 
enjoyed meeting with Rachel.  She is lively and good to talk 
to.’  
 
Alicia has been in Australia for six months. She volunteered 
at home in the US and has found that volunteering is a great 
way to get to know an area and the people in it. She is sad to 
be leaving Rachel and Australia but has enjoyed her 
experience here very much. 

 
Thank you  

Thank you to all our volunteers who have assisted us to 
continue to make a difference. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

To find out how to volunteer with us, or to read our volunteer handbook, visit our website  www.bensoc.org.au. 
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Directors’ report 
30 June 2008 

Directors’ report  
The directors of The Benevolent Society present their report on The Benevolent Society (“the Society”) for the year ended 30 
June 2008. 
 
Directors 
The following persons were directors of the Society during the whole of the financial year and up to the date of this report: 

Bill Webster 
Sam Weiss 
Tanya Gilerman  
Robert Fitzgerald  
Margaret Hetherton  
Denise Lynch  
Gary Moore  
Philip Myles 
Julie Rosenberg  
Simone Schwarz  
 
The following directors were appointed after 30 June 2008 and held office up to the date of this report: 
 
Rebecca Dee-Bradbury and Justin Ryan were appointed as directors on 15 August 2008 and Joan Lind was appointed as a 
director on 18 August 2008. These directors continue in office at the date of this report. 
 
All directors are members of the Society. 
 

Principal activities 
 
 

 
We support people from all 
backgrounds, including Indigenous 
Australians and people from 
culturally and linguistically diverse 
communities. We provide services 
in NSW and Queensland, reaching 
more than 16,000 children and 
adults each year. 
We do this with the support of our 
staff and volunteers. The Society 
employs 783 staff, the equivalent 
of 534 fulltime staff throughout 
NSW and Queensland. 
Approximately 900 volunteers are 
working across our services and 
programs as well as in individual 
roles with our support services.   
 

How we spent our funds: 2008
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There were no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the Society during the year other than as detailed elsewhere 
in the report. 

Review of operations and results 
 
The Society experienced another year of significant growth. This growth resulted from funding received to implement our early 
intervention children’s programs, known as Brighter Futures, into metropolitan, regional and rural NSW. New funding was 
received to commence operating an Early Years Centre in Queensland and to commence services to people experiencing 
severe mental illness in Armidale, Wingecarribee and Liverpool. Social Leadership Australia’s funding doubled as a result of 
expanding the range of leadership programs. 
In line with our strategic plan, we closed our aged care hostel in Bondi and commenced the Apartments for Life project in 
Ocean Street by lodging a Development Application with Waverley Council in May 2008. 
During the year substantial time was invested in the “year two” activities detailed in the Society’s three year strategic plan.  
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Net deficit 
The net deficit for the year ended 30 June 2008 was $945,000 (2007 surplus: $3,985,000). The Society aims to return a surplus 
approximating the income earned from the long term investment portfolio.  This year it was $2,041,000 (2007: $3,172,000).  
The intention is to maintain the real value of the investment portfolio to deliver income growth for future years.  The downturn in 
global financial markets resulted in a decrease of $3,070,000 in the market value of our investments in excess of the asset 
revaluation reserve.  This amount was recognised in the income statement.  

 

Revenue 
Revenue from total operations grew by 13% in 2008 to 
$55 million. This was primarily due to an increase in 
Government funding of 28% in the children’s areas of 
early intervention in rural and metropolitan areas of 
NSW, Early Years Centre in Queensland and funding for 
the personal helpers and mentors program for people 
suffering from mental illness in Liverpool, Wingecarribee 
and Armidale in NSW. 

Our revenue continues to grow
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Expenses 
Total expenses showed an increase over 2007 of 22% 
to $53 million. Expenses increased in most areas with 
the main increases occurring in salaries and related 
expenditure by 16%, administration, fundraising and 
information technology costs by 27%, travel by 117% 
and property and maintenance by 112%. Many of 
these increased costs resulted from the 
implementation of the Brighter Futures early 
intervention program in eight regions of NSW. 

 

Expenses 2008

Client expenditure, 
2%

Salaries and wages, 
68%

Client brokerage, 
8%

Depreciation, 3%

Community 
partners, 5%

Administration & 
fundraising, 6%

Travel and 
transport, 2%

Property and 
equipment 

maintenance, 6%

  
 
Financial assets  
The financial assets, referred to as the managed fund investments, decreased by 9% to $51,393,000. Of this, $5,240,000 
resulted from a downturn in the performance of global financial markets. The investment strategy, whilst providing ongoing 
annual income for implementing the Society’s strategy, also provides for future income growth through the reinvestment of the
long term portfolio income. Growth in this area is particularly important to provide capital and income streams to fund future 
initiatives. 
 
Assets 
Total assets decreased by 7% to $108,763,000. The decrease of $7,646,000 was primarily due to the decrease in the 
managed fund investments of $5,240,000 and the repayment of bonds of $1,667,000 resulting from the closure of the aged 
care hostel at Bondi. The repayment of these bonds reduces liabilities by the corresponding amount. 
 
Liabilities 
Liabilities decreased by 5% to $23,933,000. The decrease of $1,233,000 was primarily a result of the repayment of bonds 
resulting from the closure of the aged care hostel at Bondi and an increase in the provisions.  
 
Society’s funds 
Total Society’s funds decreased by 7% to $84,830,000. The decrease of $6,413,000 was due to the reduction in the asset 
revaluation reserve of $5,478,000 due to the managed fund investment impairment and $945,000 net deficit. 
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Cash flows 
Cash reserves decreased by $1,693,000 this year. Operating activities generated a cash deficit of $316,000 primarily due to 
the timing of the receipt of government funding. An amount of $2,112,000 was received in June 2007 for expenditure on the 
Brighter Futures program during 2007–08. Our investment activities generated a cash deficit of $1,098,000 due to expenditure 
on property plant and equipment. Capital expenditure of $932,000 was incurred for Apartments for Life at Ocean Street and 
$430,000 was incurred on the fit-out of new offices at Hurstville to house our Southern Sydney community programs.  
 

Significant changes in the state of affairs 
There was no significant change in the state of affairs of the Society during the financial year. 

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year 
There has not been any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly 
affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Society, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the 
Society in future financial years. 

Likely developments and expected results of operations  
Likely developments in the operations of the Society relate to the decision to exit aged care facilities and related villages.  At 
the date of this report the Society is negotiating with potential buyers.  Additional information is included in this annual report 
under note 9 Discontinued Operations. 
 
In the opinion of the directors there are no further likely changes in operations of the Society which will adversely affect the 
results of the Society. 
 

Dividends 
The Society is a company limited by guarantee. It is prohibited by its Constitution from paying dividends to members. 

Environmental regulation 
The Society is not subject to any significant environmental regulation. 

Information on Directors 
The following persons were directors of the Society during the financial year and up to the date of this report: 

President: Bill Webster F Fin, MAICD (director since 15 October 2002)  
A member of the Board since October 2002, Bill was elected President in November 2003. He serves as a non-executive 
Director of several “MLC” branded companies in the National group of companies. He has significant general management 
experience, most recently as an Executive Director of Lend Lease Corporation from 1987–1999. He was a Director of the MS 
Society of NSW from 2000–2004.  
 
Vice President: Sam Weiss AB Harvard University, MS Columbia Business School, FAICD (director since 14 July 2005)
Sam is Chairman of Altium Limited, Deputy Chairman of GLG Corp Limited, and a Non-Executive Director of OrotonGroup 
Limited, Housewares International Limited, IPGA Limited and Open Universities Australia. He is the Treasurer and a 
Non-Executive Director of the Sydney Festival and a Senate appointed Director of the University of Sydney Union. 
 
Honorary Treasurer: Tanya Gilerman BEc, CA,  MAICD (director since 15 March 2005) 
Tanya is a partner in KPMG Sydney’s Audit and Risk Advisory Services. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in Australia and the Australian Institute of Company Directors.  
 
Rebecca Dee-Bradbury  B Bus (Marketing), MAICD (director since 15 August 2008) 
Rebecca most recently led the turnaround of Barbeques Galore as Group CEO. She has a background in organisational 
transformation having held key leadership roles within McDonald’s/ DDB Needham, eVentures (a Newscorp Company), Pepsi
Cola Bottlers and Maxxium. Rebecca is a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 
 
Robert Fitzgerald AM, B Com, LLB (director since 20 November 2006) 
Formerly a commercial solicitor, Robert is currently a full time Commissioner with the Productivity Commission, and was 
formerly NSW Community and Disability Services Commissioner. He is a past President of Australian Council of Social 
Services and founding Chair of the National Roundtable of Nonprofit Organisations.  
 
Margaret Hetherton MA, Dip Soc Wk, Dip Soc Res (director since 21 October 1997) 
Now retired, Margaret was formerly the Chief Executive of the Mercy Family Centre and has filled Board and management 
roles in other aged care and disability service organisations. She is currently a member of the Board of Karlaminda Hostel and 
is involved in research and advocacy work with refugees. She has published social research in relation to the legal profession,
sociology of religion and adolescent development. 
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Joan Lind BA (director since 18 August 2008) 
Joan Lind is Head of Client Services at Lowe.  She spent eight years at M&C Saatchi, Sydney.  Joan has worked  with 
government initiatives such as The Metropolitan Water Plan NSW, and CityRail consumer communications. In London she 
was involved in corporate charity work including a children’s mentoring initiative. In Sydney she has been involved with The 
Shepherd Centre, School for Deaf Children, and Optus to develop communications for their relationship with Kids Helpline. 
 
Denise Lynch B Soc Wk, M Crim (director since 9 November 1995) 
Denise joined the Board in 1995. She is a Lecturer in the School of Social Work and Policy Studies in the Faculty of Education 
and Social Work at the University of Sydney. Her areas of interest are family welfare, child protection and she has a research
interest in child refugees.  
 
Gary Moore B Soc Wk, M Mgt (director since 20 November 2006) 
Gary is Director of Community Services at Marrickville Council, located in the inner west of Sydney. From 1995 to 2006, he was 
the Director (CEO) of the Council of Social Service of New South Wales (NCOSS), the State’s peak non-government human 
services body. Gary is currently a Board member of Charities Aid Foundation Australia and the Centre for Volunteering and is 
Chairperson of Healthy Kids–the NSW School Canteens Association. 
 
Philip Myles FCPA, AICA (director since 12 September 1996) 
Philip has been a board member for 12 years and has held the positions of Vice President and Treasurer.  He is a Fellow of the 
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and was the Managing Director of Honeywell from 1972–1995. 
 
Julie Rosenberg  LLB (Hons), LLM (Hons) (director since 20 March 2001)  
Julie has a background in corporate and finance law with Corrs Chambers Westgarth, Herbert Smith and Mallesons Stephen 
Jaques. She was General Legal Counsel to the Sydney Paralympic Organising Committee. She is currently Business 
Development Manager at Australian Theatre for Young People. 
 
Justin Ryan BEc LLB, MBA, F Fin, MAICD (director since 15 August 2008) 
Justin joined Alesco Corporation Limited in 2004 and was appointed Managing Director and CEO on 1 June 2006. Prior to this,
Justin spent seven years in private equity where he developed his skills in acquiring, improving and growing a diverse portfolio
of businesses. He retired as Chairman of the Australian Venture Capital Association in 2003 and was Chairman of Access 
Programs Limited (a not-for-profit Employee Access Programs provider) from 2003–2008. 
 
Simone Schwarz BA M App Social Research (director since 21 October 1997) 
Simone is Manager of the Strategic Planning Unit of the Sutherland Shire Council, a Visiting Associate to the UTS Centre for 
Local Government and a past President of the NSW Local Government Community Services Association.  
 
Company Secretary 
Sheri Norton BEc, MLS (CommLaw) (company secretary since 16 October 2007) 
Sheri has formal qualifications in both Accounting and Commercial Law and has extensive management experience across a
broad range of sectors including property, banking, not-for-profit, government and education.  
 
Michelle Bergman was company secretary from 19 June 2007 until her resignation on 15 October 2007.  She has been deputy 
company secretary since 16 October 2007. 

Meetings of directors  
The following table sets out the numbers of meetings of the Society’s Board of directors (including meetings of committees of 
directors) held during the year ended 30 June 2008 and the number of meetings attended by each director (while they were a
director or committee member). During the year, eight Board meetings, four audit and finance meetings, and four human 
resources meetings were held.   

Board of directors Audit & finance 
committee 

Human resources 
committee 

 
 
Director Number 

eligible  
to attend 

Number 
attended 

Number 
eligible  

to attend 
Number 
attended 

Number 
eligible  

to attend 
Number 
attended 

Robert Fitzgerald 9 7 - - - - 
Tanya Gilerman 9 9 4 4 - - 
Margaret Hetherton 9 8 4 3 4 4 
Denise Lynch 9 9 - - 4 4 
Gary Moore 9 5 - - - - 
Philip Myles 9 7 4 2 - - 
Julie Rosenberg 9 4 - - - - 
Simone Schwarz 9 7 - - 4 3 
Bill Webster 9 8 4 4 4 4 
Sam Weiss 9 7 4 3 4 4 
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Retirement, election and continuation in office of directors 
There were no retirements during the year. 

Remuneration of directors 
Directors of the Society are not remunerated, though expenses incurred on Society business may be reimbursed. 

Loans to directors and executives 
There are no loans to the directors or executives of the Society. 

Insurance of officers 
During the financial year the Society paid premiums of $18,000 (2007: $22,575) to insure the directors of the Society, the 
Society secretary and all executive officers of the Society against a liability incurred as such a director, secretary or executive
officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001.  

The Society is insured for any loss for which a director or officer becomes legally obligated to pay resulting from a wrongful act 
and any amount for which the Society indemnifies any director or officer in respect of any claims made against the director or
officer arising from a wrongful act.  

The Society has not otherwise, during or since the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer of the Society 
against a liability incurred as such an officer. 

 
Proceedings on behalf of the Society 
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of 
the Society, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Society is a party, for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf 
of the Society for all or part of those proceedings. 

No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the Society with leave of the Court under section 237 of the 
Corporations Act 2001. 
 
Non-audit services 
The Society may decide to employ the auditors on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where the auditor’s 
expertise and experience with the Society are important. 

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditors (PricewaterhouseCoopers) for audit and non-audit services provided 
during the year are set out below. 

The Board of directors has considered the position and, in accordance with the advice received from the audit and finance 
committee is satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for
auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services by the 
auditors, as set out below, did not compromise the auditors independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the 
following reasons: 
All non-audit services have been reviewed by the audit and finance committee to ensure they do not impact the impartiality and
objectivity of the auditors; 
Not one of the services undermines the general principles relating to auditors independence as set out in APES 110 Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants. 

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditors of the Society, its related practices 
and non-related audit firms: 

  2008  2007 
  $  $ 

Assurance services    
1.  Audit services   
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm:   

Audit of financial reports and other audit work under the Corporations Act 2001  79,148  51,084 
Non-PricewaterhouseCoopers audit firm  -  - 
Total remuneration for audit services  79,148  51,084 

2. Other assurance services   
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm:   
      Review of government grant financial reports  15,490  15,000 
Non-PricewaterhouseCoopers audit firm  -  - 
Total remuneration for other assurance services  15,490  15,000 

Total remuneration for assurance services  94,638  66,084 
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Governance statement 
30 June 2008 

Governance statement 
We are social pioneers and innovators. 
 
Our purpose is to create caring and inclusive communities and a just society. 
 
We value community life that is healthy and safe, connected, productive and participatory, rich in cultural and 
recreational activities, just and fair. 
 
We are committed to conducting our affairs and services with the highest standards of personal and corporate 
integrity. Anything less is unacceptable. 
 

The Benevolent Society (the Society) is a public benevolent institution operating as a company limited by guarantee. Its 
activities are regulated by the Corporations Law and other State and Commonwealth Laws as applicable and the Society’s 
Constitution. 

 
The Board of directors 
The Society has a Board of directors which is chaired by the President. No directors receive remuneration, though expenses 
incurred on Society business may be reimbursed. 

 
Responsibilities 
The duties and responsibilities of the Board are as follows: 
• to set our strategic direction 
• to ensure that the Society is managed responsibly and competently 
• to ensure that the Society is responsible and accountable to all stakeholders 
• to ensure a sound financial performance which enables the Society to meet its strategic goals 
• to ensure the Society complies with the law and a high level of ethical standards 
• to ensure effective management of risks 
• to monitor the effectiveness of all services 

 
This statement is written to help the Board and all the Society’s stakeholders to understand how Board directors perform their 
roles.  
 
 
1. Directors’ personal engagement with the Society 
We expect our directors to support and promote our core values.  
  
We have an induction program that ensures new directors understand our organisation and the wider community context in 
which we operate. We provide an induction kit to new directors that includes:  
• Our governance statement, the current 3 year strategic plan, the 2 most recent Annual Reports, the Constitution 

and By-Laws, the agreed delegations to senior management, details of Board Committees with membership and 
charters, the organisational policies that have been most recently discussed by the Board and a copy of the 
minutes of Board meetings held during the previous 2 years. 
 

The President and senior staff aim to ensure that new directors understand our strategic and operational position and 
initiatives, as well as the rights and responsibilities of directors. We also ensure new directors understand our responsibilities 
to our various stakeholders.  
 
Directors are expected to visit or attend a range of Society facilities, services and functions each year. 

 
Directors are regularly invited, together with management, to attend addresses by and discussions with experts in social policy
and service delivery.  

 
Strategic Planning 
Management, in conjunction with the Board, prepares a strategic plan every 3 years.  The Board requires management to 
report at least annually against the outcomes set in that plan.   
 
At an annual planning session each year involving the Board and senior executives, the Society’s strategic goals, priorities, 
and resource allocations are discussed and affirmed. 
 
The Board ensures that annual business plans produced by the operating units of the Society are aligned with annual budgets
and the 3 year strategic plan. 
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2. The Board lays solid foundations for effective management 
We have clearly defined roles for the Board and management. The President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) have a role in
ensuring that directors and management understand these agreed roles and responsibilities. Induction and ongoing 
development programs are a part of this. 
 
The Board’s role involves setting strategic direction and objectives and ensuring that management can competently and 
responsibly deliver against the objectives.   
 
Management’s role is to implement the strategic plan, within the risk, financial and other frameworks set by the Board. In 
addition management is expected to introduce to the Board outcomes of research and suggestions for additional initiatives that 
are aligned with the Society’s purpose. 
 
To enable management to fulfil its roles appropriately the Board: 
• appoints the CEO and reviews his performance;   
• participates in developing and approving the strategic objectives of the organisation; 
• ratifies and monitors implementation of strategic goals through the review of annual business plans and budgets; 
• approves and monitors the major initiatives that may affect the overall financial performance and financial health of

the Society;  
• regularly monitors financial performance;  
• reviews annually risk management and compliance systems;  
• delegates authority to the CEO; 
• periodically and as required reviews ethical policies, standards and codes of conduct; 
• actively considers the interests of stakeholders in its decision making; and 
• meets regularly with other members of the Society’s executive. 

 
The day-to-day management of the Society’s activities is delegated to the CEO. 
 
The Board has also delegated some of its functions to Board committees within clearly defined limits.  
 
The CEO briefs the President regularly (usually fortnightly) on emerging and ongoing issues, and updates all directors on any
matters of importance, as appropriate, between Board meetings. 
 
 
3. The Board adds value and is structured accordingly 
The Society believes that its interests will be best served if the Board incorporates the appropriate range of skills and 
experience not only to govern the Society’s affairs properly, but to deliver the highest practical quality of services and thought
leadership. It is not expected that any individual director will be an expert in all facets of the Society’s governance and 
activities. It is expected that collectively the Board will have the expertise to address all issues and challenges the Society is 
likely to face. 
 

The Constitution stipulates that the number of directors of the Society will be not less than 5 and not more than 20. We currently 
have 13 directors, 2 of whom will retire at the Annual General Meeting in November.  
 
At least 1/3 of directors must retire each year, by rotation. They may offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General 
Meeting. Directors appointed by the Board during the course of the year must submit themselves for election by the members 
at the next Annual General Meeting (AGM). 
 
Office bearers (President, Vice-Presidents and Treasurer) cannot serve more than 5 consecutive years in 1 position. 
 
Appointment of directors 
When seeking an additional director for appointment the Board follows a policy of considering and then attracting the best 
talent that may be available. To ensure this policy is enacted, an external consultant is used for all appointments. 
 
A committee of the Board, headed by the President, will be authorised to consider potential appointees, conduct interviews and 
make recommendations to the full Board. The committee will typically comprise the President, Vice-Presidents and 1 or 2 
directors with experience pertinent to the potential appointee’s area of expertise. 
 
We select directors who identify with and support our core values. 
 

Board review 
The Board follows a policy of inviting an external consultant to conduct a Board review from time to time. The last review was 
in July 2006. The purpose of the review is to identify issues relating to the skills on the Board, behaviours, relationships or 
practices that might be inhibiting the Board from being fully effective. The Board believes that constructive feedback from an 
external expert should assist the Board in addressing the dynamic nature of the services and environment within which the 
Society operates. 
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A director’s decision to continue on the Board is the result of self-assessment and discussion with the President ahead of the 
AGM at which re-election is an option. 
 
The Board has 2 standing committees: audit and finance, and human resources, with charters set by the Board and specific 
delegated authority on some matters. Other committees are created on an ad hoc basis, usually with limited duration to 
address a specific matter or initiative. 
 
 
4. We respect the rights and interests of our stakeholders 
We deal with our stakeholders in accordance with our values. 
 
Stakeholders include: clients and former clients, recipients of our services including some of the most disadvantaged people in
society, program funders, donors and grantors, members, staff, volunteers, the alumni of the Society’s social leadership 
programs, individuals who have a demonstrated interest in the Society’s work including academics and public thinkers who 
have an interest in the fields in which the Society works, and the wider communities in those areas in which we operate, 
including individuals, other agencies and government entities. Particular attention is paid to the relationship between the 
Society and various government bodies that fund a large number of the Society’s programs and to whom the Society reports 
on the effectiveness of those programs. 

 
Our decision-making framework ensures the needs of our stakeholders are considered.  We encourage feedback from our 
stakeholders and take this into account when developing services and procedures.  
 
 
5. We desire a special relationship with our members 
The Board is accountable to the members for the conduct of the Society’s affairs. In particular the Board looks to members to 
hold it accountable in relation to the long term management of the Society’s financial endowment. 
 
The Society seeks to have its various stakeholders represented in its membership. 
 
The Society hopes that in addition to fulfilling their responsibilities under the Corporations Law and its Constitution its members
will engage with the Society to: 
• support the direction and purpose of the Society’s work; 
• participate in some measure in the activities of the Society 

 
Accordingly members receive bulletins, newsletters and donor communications to ensure that they are continuously informed
about the Society’s activities and progress.  

 
 
6. We require transparency and  integrity in financial management and reporting 
Appropriate management of the Society’s financial affairs is fundamental to the financial health of the Society and its future 
ability to satisfy its expanding service obligations.  
 
The audit and finance committee is a standing committee of the Board. Its objectives are to assist the Board to discharge its 
responsibilities in respect of the Society’s: 

 
• financial management 
• internal control systems 
• risk management system 
• protection of its assets 
• financial reporting 
• application of accounting policies 
• business policies and practices 
• compliance with applicable laws, regulations, standards and practice guidelines 

 
In doing this it is intimately involved in the annual budgeting process, the investment policy, insurance program and interfacing
with the external auditors. 

 
The committee comprises at least 3 directors. The CEO, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), General Manager of Social Initiatives 
(GM SI), General Manager of Operations (GM Ops) and external auditors are invited to attend meetings. 

 
Once a year the committee interviews the external auditors, without management being present. 
 
The Treasurer, who chairs the audit and finance committee meetings, reports to the full Board at the next Board meeting and 
submits recommendations to the Board as determined by the committee. The Treasurer reports to the Board annually on the 
committee’s review of internal controls. 
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We require a written report from the CEO and CFO that our financial reports present a true and fair view of all aspects of the
Society’s financial performance and position.  

 
 
7. We manage risk and monitor compliance 
We have a risk management plan that is reviewed at least 6-monthly by the audit and finance committee.  Assessment, 
control and treatment of risks are built into our annual cycle of risk review and operating plans. 
 

Compliance is managed in the following ways: 
• the human resources (HR) committee reviews all matters to do with personnel, including Occupational Health and 

Safety (OHS) and other statutory requirements for the safety and wellbeing of our staff and volunteers 
• the audit and finance committee reviews compliance with applicable laws, regulations, standards and practice 

guidelines 
• the Board reviews compliance with the various compliance provisions and accreditation regimes for our clients 

including child care and aged care 
• All research projects require approval by a research approval committee, and are subjected to scrutiny by a 

research ethics committee 
• all breaches of policies other than human resources policies are required to be reported to the audit & finance 

committee 
 

 
8. We value our people 
The people who work in an organisation such as the Society are typically people who put the needs of others ahead of their 
own needs, have a very strong social conscience and a strong desire to be loyal to their clients and our organisation. It is 
vitally important that we respect their contribution to society at large and to the Society in particular. Accordingly, our HR 
practices must be of the highest quality. 

 
The human resources committee is a standing committee of the Board. 
Its responsibilities include: 
• advising the Board on HR policies 
• reviewing the annual HR plan and recommending it to the Board for adoption 
• reviewing key strategic HR policies (e.g. the executive remuneration policy) 
• monitoring compliance with HR policies 
• monitoring implementation of human resources initiatives 
• monitoring key employment ratios, data and trends and approving priorities for management action 
• reviewing annually salary and award levels and movements in the community and government sectors 
• reviewing the CEO’s recommendations for remuneration changes for individual senior management as a result of 

their annual review 
 

The committee comprises at least 3 directors. The CEO and General Manager Human Resources are invited to attend 
meetings. 
 
The Chairman of the committee reports to the full Board at the next meeting and submits recommendations to the Board as 
determined by the committee. 
 
The CEO’s performance and remuneration are reviewed by the full Board. 
 
We have a strong volunteering culture and offer a range of opportunities for individuals and organisations to contribute to our
community work. We value and publicly recognise the contribution of our volunteers in various forums and formats throughout 
the year. 
 
 
 
 
Notwithstanding the need to have policies, protocols and procedures in place to fulfil its obligations properly, the 
Board is fully aware that the Society will perform to its potential only if its people, in whatever capacity they operate, 
exemplify a culture of adherence to the ‘values’ of the Society. It is not possible to legislate for ‘good behaviour’.  
 
Nor is it possible to ensure by policies or direction that the Society’s people constantly strive to ‘do the right thing’ 
or have ‘duty of care’ as their guiding light. Yet this is the essence of what the Society is about. Without recognition
of this, the governance statement would be incomplete. 
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Income statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2008 

 
   2008  2007 

 

Notes  $’000  $’000 

Revenue from continuing operations   43,300  37,434 
Restricted grants received in advance   3,992  4,037 
Total revenue 5  47,292  41,471 
    
Community program expenses   (40,799)  (34,789) 
Fundraising and communications expenses   (811)  (687) 
Social initiatives   (932)  (130) 
Impairment of other financial assets 11(d)  (3,070)  - 
Infrastructure and investment expenses    (1,330)  (786) 
Total expenses 6  (46,942)  (36,392) 

Surplus before income tax 
 

 350  5,079 

Income tax expense 1(o)  -  - 

Surplus from continuing operations   350  5,079 
    
Deficit from discontinuing operations 9   (1,295)  (1,094) 
(Deficit)/surplus for the year 

 
  (945)  3,985 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Balance sheet 
As at 30 June 2008 

 
   2008  2007 

 

Notes  $’000  $’000 

ASSETS    
Current assets     
Cash and cash equivalents  7  5,858  7,551 
Trade and other receivables 8  3,963  3,975 
   9,821  11,526 
Assets of discontinuing operations 9  12,171  - 
Total current assets   21,992  11,526 

Non-current assets     
Receivables  10  100   100  
Other financial assets  11  51,393   56,633  
Property, plant and equipment 12  35,278  48,150  
Total non-current assets   86,771  104,883  

Total assets   108,763  116,409 

LIABILITIES    
Current liabilities    
Trade and other payables  13  4,378  4,816 
Resident contributions   16,065  17,209 
Provisions 14  1,924  2,501 
   22,367              24,526 
Liabilities directly associated with discontinuing operations 9  936  - 
Total current liabilities   23,303  24,526 

Non-current liabilities    
Provisions 15  630  640  
Total non-current liabilities   630   640  

Total liabilities   23,933  25,166  

Net assets   84,830 
 

 91,243 

SOCIETY’S FUNDS    
Asset revaluation reserve  16(a)  -  5,468 
Restricted grants reserve 16(b)  5,560  5,478 
Retained surplus 16(c)  79,270  80,297 

Total Society’s funds   84,830  91,243 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 



The Benevolent Society 

 29 2008 Annual Financial Report

 

Statement of recognised income and expense 
For the year ended 30 June 2008 

 
   2008  2007 

 
Notes  $’000  $’000 

Total Society’s funds at the beginning of the financial year   91,243  85,380 
    
Impairment of other financial assets 16(a)  (5,468)  1,881 
Prior year adjustment 16(c)  -                     (3) 
Net (loss)/ income recognised directly in Society’s funds           (5,468)   1,878 

(Deficit)/surplus for the year 

 
 (945)  3,985 

Total recognised income and expense for the year  
 

 (6,413)  5,863 

Total Society’s funds at the end of the financial year 
 

 84,830 
 

 91,243 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above statement of recognised income and expense should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Cash flow statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2008 

 
   2008  2007 

 
Notes  $’000  $’000 

Cash flows from operating activities    
Receipts from government funding and clients (inclusive of goods and services 
tax)    52,590  44,598 
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services tax)    (54,313)  (44,015) 
   (1,723)  583 
Managed fund distributions, franking credits and interest received 

 
 1,407  2,091 

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities 23  (316)  2,674 

 
Cash flows from investing activities     
Payment for managed fund investments   (342)  (5,400) 
Proceeds from managed funds   -  5,031 
Payments for property, plant and equipment   (2,026)  (2,945) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

 
 1,270  3,455 

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities 
 

 (1,098)  141 

 
Cash flows from financing activities     
Proceeds from resident contributions   4,959  4,552 
Repayment of resident contributions 

 
 (5,238)  (4,191) 

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities   (279)  361 

 
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents   (1,693)  3,176 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 

 
 7,551  4,375 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 7  5,858  7,551 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above cash flow statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Notes to the financial statements 
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies  
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Basis of preparation  

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other 
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and the Corporations Act 2001. 

Compliance with IFRSs 
Australian Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). 
Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the financial report of the Society complies with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS). 

Early adoption of standards 
The Society has not elected to apply early any standards to the annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2007. 

Historical cost convention 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial 
assets. 

Critical accounting estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AIFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It 
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Society’s accounting policies. The areas 
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
financial statements, are disclosed in note 3. 

(b) Segment reporting 

The principal activity of the Society is the provision of community services. 

(i) Adoption of accounting policy for segment reporting 
Segment reporting does not apply to general purpose accounts of not-for-profit entities. However on the 10 February 2005, 
amendments to the Aged Care Act 1997 require the treatment of residential aged care as a reportable segment within the 
meaning of AASB 114 Segment Reporting. The Society has adopted segment reporting on the Residential Aged Care 
segment to conform with the Aged Care Act 1997 from the 1 July 2004 (refer note 4). 

(c) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.  Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of 
returns, trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

Revenue is recognised when the Society has control of the contribution. Revenue is recognised for the major business 
activities as follows: 

(i) Sale of goods and disposal of assets 
Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets is recognised when the Society has passed control of the goods 
or other assets to the buyer. 

(ii)    Interest and investment income 
Interest is recognised when received. Investment income is recognised on an accrual basis. 

(iii) Government, trust and foundation grants 
Restricted grants received in advance from government, trusts and foundations are recognised on receipt of the funding 
irrespective of whether the related costs which they were intended to compensate will occur in future periods. 

(d) Leases 

 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Society as Lessee are 
classified as operating leases (note 20).  Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the 
lessor) are charged to the income statement on a basis which reflects the pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.  The Society has no finance lease obligations. 
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

(e) Impairment of property, plant and equipment 

The Society values land and buildings using the cost model as in accordance with AASB 116 Property Plant and Equipment. 
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount through the income statement. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date. 

(f) Cash and cash equivalents 

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with 
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of nine months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(g) Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date
of recognition.   

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off to 
bad debts in expenses.  An impairment allowance account (doubtful debts) is used when there is objective evidence that the 
Society will not be able to collect all amounts due, according to the original terms of receivables.  Significant financial difficulties 
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in 
payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is doubtful.  The amount of the 
impairment allowance and Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted as the effect of discounting is 
immaterial.   

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement within bad debts expenses.  When a trade receivable 
for which an impairment allowance had been recognised becomes uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off against
the allowance account.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against bad debts in the income 
statement. 

(h) Current assets of discontinuing operations 

A discontinuing operation as defined in AASB 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, is a 
component of the entity that is being disposed of or classified as held for sale and that represents a separate major line of 
business or geographical area of operations, and is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or 
area of operations.  The Society is actively seeking interested parties to take over the operations of our aged care facilities and
related villages.  The results of discontinuing operations are presented separately in the income statement. 

Current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as discontinuing operations if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.  They are measured at the lower of their carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell.  

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less 
costs to sell.  A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group),
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised.  A gain or loss not previously recognised by the 
date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of derecognition. 

Current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as
held for sale.  Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to
be recognised. 

Current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately
from the other assets in the balance sheet.  The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented 
separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet. 
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

(i) Investments and Other financial assets 

Classification 
The Society classifies its financial assets as available-for-sale financial assets.  The classification depends on the purpose for 
which the investments were acquired.  Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition. 

Available-for-sale financial assets 
Available-for-sale financial assets comprise mainly managed funds. The Society takes a long term view with its investment 
funds and it does this by recording only income from the portfolios in revenue from continuing activities in the income 
statement. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months 
of the balance sheet date. 

Recognition and derecognition 
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date – the date on which the Society commits to purchase or 
sell the asset.  Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value with unrealised changes reflected in the
Society’s funds.  Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have 
expired or have been transferred and the Society has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. 

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in the
Society’s funds are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities. 

Subsequent measurement 
Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently carried at fair value.  Gains or losses 
arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the 
income statement within other income or other expenses in the period in which they arise.  Managed Fund income from 
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is recognised in the income statement as part of revenue from continuing 
operations when the Society’s right to receive payments is established. 

Impairment 
The Society assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial 
assets is impaired.  In the case of managed funds classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair 
value of a fund below its cost is considered as an indicator that the funds are impaired.  If any such evidence exists for 
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the 
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss – is removed from 
Society funds and recognised in the income statement.  

(j) Property, plant and equipment 

Land and buildings are shown at deemed cost as at transition date.  All other property, plant and equipment is stated at 
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Society and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.  All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred. 

Land is not depreciated.  Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of 
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

- Buildings 40 years or the life of the lease 
- Plant and equipment 3–10 years 

 
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. 

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than 
its estimated recoverable amount (note 1(e)). 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the income
statement.  
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

(k) Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Society prior to the end of financial year which are 
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 

(l) Provisions  

Provisions are recognised when the Society has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the cost of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting date. The amount of the expenditure relating to provisions are not discounted as the effect of discounting is 
immaterial.   

(m) Employee benefits 

(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of 
the reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date and are 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

(ii) Long service leave 
The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of 
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.   

(iii) On-costs 
Employee benefit on-costs, including superannuation and workers compensation, are recognised and included in employee 
benefit expenses when the employee benefits to which they relate, are recognised as liabilities. 

(iii) Termination benefits 
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an employee 
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.  The Society recognises termination benefits when it is 
demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without 
possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. 

(n)  Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the taxation authority.  In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of
the expense. 

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable.  The net amount of GST 
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis.  The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities 
which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flow. 

(o) Income tax 

The Society, as a public benevolent institution, is endorsed for income tax exemption under subdivision 50-B of the Income Tax
Assessment Act 1997. 

(p) Resident contributions 

Resident contributions are the amounts hostel and village residents loan to the Society by deed of loan, which are payable on
vacation of a unit by a resident, less the amount allowed to be retained by the Society, as determined by the deed of the loan.
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

(q) Net current liabilities 

While net current assets are in deficit due to the classification of Residential Bonds as a current liability as required by the 
Australian Accounting Standards, the Society does not expect to have to repay these Bonds in full within the next 12 months.
The Society has sufficient liquidity within the investment portfolio to be able to discharge all bonds and other liabilities.   

(r) Rounding of amounts 

The Society is of a kind referred to in Class order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, 
relating to the ‘rounding off’ of amounts in the financial report.  Amounts in the financial report have been rounded off in 
accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar. 

(s) New accounting standards and UIG interpretations 

Certain new accounting standards and UIG interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2008 
reporting periods.  The Society’s assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out below. 

(i) AASB 8 Operating Segments and AASB 2007-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 8
AASB 8 and AASB 2007-3 are effective for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009.  AASB 8 will 
result in a significant change in the approach to segment reporting, as it requires adoption of a ‘management approach’ to 
reporting on financial performance. The information being reported will be based on what the key decision makers use 
internally for evaluating segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.  The Society is 
not required to adopt AASB 8.  Therefore, it will not affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

(ii) AASB 1004 Contributions received by non-profit entities 
AASB 1004 Contributions applies to contributions to (including liabilities forgiven in relation to) not-for-profit entities.  This 
Standard is applicable to annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2008. AASB 1004 requires measurement at 
fair value and the disclosure of those contributions. The Society intends to apply the revised standard from 1 July 2008.  It is not 
anticipated that the application of the standard will materially impact our financial statements. 

(iii) AASB-I 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction 
AASB-I 14 will be effective for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2008.  It provides guidance on the 
maximum amount that may be recognised as an asset in relation to a defined benefit plan and the impact of minimum funding 
requirements on such an asset.  None of the Society’s defined benefit plans are subject to minimum funding requirements and
none of them is in a surplus position.  The Society will not apply AASB-I 14 from 1 July 2008. 

(iv) Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements and AASB 2007-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 101 
A revised AASB 101 was issued in September 2007 and is applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2009.  It requires the presentation of a statement of comprehensive income and makes changes to the statement of 
changes in equity, but will not affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  If an entity has made a prior 
period adjustment or has reclassified items in the financial statements, it will need to disclose a third balance sheet (statement
of financial position), this one being as at the beginning of the comparative period.  The Society intends to apply the revised 
standard from 1 July 2009.   
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2  Financial risk management 
The Society’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk 
and liquidity risk.  The Society’s overall financial risk management program focuses on financial markets and seeks to control
potential adverse effects on the long term financial performance of the Society.  The Society uses different investments to 
minimise certain risk exposures.  At call accounts, bank bills and term deposits are exclusively used for short term purposes of 
excess cashflow.  Managed Funds are used for medium and long term investment purposes where a greater risk tolerance is 
accepted.   

Risk management is carried out by the CFO under policies approved by the Board of Directors.  The CFO identifies, evaluates 
and minimises financial risks in close co-operation with the Society’s Board.  The Board approves written policies for overall 
risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and investment of excess 
liquidity. 

The Society holds the following financial instruments: 

  
  2008  2007 
  $’000  $’000 
   

Financial assets   
Cash and cash equivalents  5,858  7,551  
Trade and other receivables  3,963   3,975  
Available-for-sale financial assets    51,393  56,633 
  61,214  68,159  

Financial liabilities   
Trade and other payable  4,378  2,704 
Resident contributions  16,065   17,209  
Government funding received in advance  -   2,112  
  20,443  22,025 

(a) Market risk 

(i) Foreign exchange risk 
The Society operates within Australia and therefore is not exposed to direct foreign exchange risk.  The Society is indirectly 
exposed to foreign exchange risk due to global equities included in funds managed by MLC Investments and Russell 
Investment Group. 

(ii) Price risk 
The Society does not directly invest in equities and therefore is not exposed to direct price risk.  The Society is exposed to 
equity securities price risk as it invests indirectly in the equity market managed by ANZ Trustees and indirectly via funds 
managed by MLC Investments and Russell Investment Group.  The Society is not exposed directly to commodity price risk but 
does have an exposure via its investment in the equity market. 
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2  Financial risk management (continued) 
(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 
The Society’s main interest rate risk arises from short term investments.  During 2008 and 2007, the Society’s financial assets 
and liabilities at variable rates were denominated in Australian Dollars. 

The Society’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity periods is set out in the
following tables. 

  Fixed interest maturing in:  
2008 Average 

interest 
rate 

Variable 
interest 

rate 
1 year or 

less 
1 to 5
 years 

Over  
5 years 

Non-
interest 
bearing Total 

  %  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000 

Financial assets        
Cash  4.75  917  -  -  -  -  917 
Short term deposits  7.53  1,241  3,700  -  -  -  4,941 
Trade and other receivables  -  -  -  -  -  2,036  2,036 
Resident contributions receivable  10.99  1,927  -  -  -  -  1,927 
Managed funds  -  -  -  -  -  51,393  51,393 
  -  4,085  3,700  -  -  53,429  61,214 

Financial liabilities        
Trade and other payables  -  -  -  -  -  4,378  4,378 
Government Funding received in advance  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Resident contributions payable  -  -  -  -  -  16,065  16,065 
  -  -  -  -  -  20,443  20,443 

Net financial assets  -  4,085  3,700  -  -  32,986  40,771 

 
    
  Fixed interest maturing in:  

2007 Average 
interest 

rate 

Variable 
interest 

rate 
1 year or 

less 
1 to 5
 years 

Over  
5 years 

Non-
interest 
bearing Total 

  %  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000 

Financial assets        
Cash  4.35  943  -  -  -  -  943 
Short term deposits  6.02  2,408  4,200  -  -  -  6,608 
Trade and other receivables  -  -  -  -  -  1,417  1,417 
Resident contributions receivable  10.37  2,558  -  -  -  -  2,558 
Managed funds  -  -  -  -  -  56,633  56,633 
  -  5,909  4,200  -  -  58,050  68,159 

Financial liabilities        
Trade and other payables  -  -  -  -  -  2,704  2,704 
Government Funding received in advance  4.35  2,112  -  -  -  -  2,112 
Resident contributions payable  -  -  -  -  -  17,209  17,209 
  -  2,112  -  -  -  19,913  22,025 

Net financial assets  -  3,797 
 
 

 4,200 
 
 

 -  -  38,137  46,134 
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2  Financial risk management (continued) 

(b) Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as outstanding 
receivables and committed transactions.  The Society uses banks and financial institutions with a minimum credit rating of AA. 
There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to current and non-current receivables, as the Society has a large number 
of clients, dispersed throughout New South Wales and  in Queensland, Australia.  The majority of clients are required to settle 
using direct debit or using major credit cards.  The funding provided by government is also spread between Australian federal 
and state government funding. 

(c) Liquidity risk 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities.  The Society manages 
liquidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 
73% of the Society’s funding is provided in advance by government and surplus funds are generally only invested in 
instruments that are tradeable in highly liquid markets. 

(d) Fair value estimation 

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure 
purposes. 

The Society uses fair value estimation for medium to long-term investments in managed funds.  The Society’s managed funds
are carried at fair value which approximates current market value.  The Society enters into a range of managed fund portfolios 
to manage risk in accordance with our Investment Policy approved by the Board of directors.  This policy has been complied 
with at the year end.   

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values 
due to their short-term nature.  The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated to approximate their fair 
values due to the unknown holding term. 

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 

The Society makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, 
seldom equal the related actual results. There are no estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

4  Segment information 

(a) Description of segments  

Business segments 
The Society is organised into the following divisions by product and service type: 

Residential aged care 
Includes aged care residential hostels and nursing homes. 

Community services 
Includes mental heath programs, children’s services and childcare centres, aged care community services, social leadership, 
and women’s health programs. 

Other activities 
Includes fundraising, investments, infrastructure costs and unallocated activities that cannot reasonably be allocated to 
community services or residential aged care.  These activities do not constitute a separate reportable segment. 
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4   Segment information (continued) 

Geographical segments 

The Society operates in 2 main geographical areas being New South Wales and Queensland, Australia. 

(b) Primary reporting format – business segments  

     
 
2008 

  Residential 
    aged care

  Community  
      services            Other              Total

 

           $’000           $’000            $’000             $’000

Segment revenue     
Fundraising income/bequests  16  319  1,312  1,647 
Other revenue  8,426  39,831  5,340  53,597 
Total segment revenue 
 

 8,442  40,150  6,652  55,244 

     
Segment result (notes (c) (i) (ii))  

 
 (1,634)  (832)  1,521  (945) 

Income tax expense 
 

 -  -  -  - 

Net surplus/(deficit) 
 

 (1,634)  (832)  1,521  (945) 

Segment assets and liabilities (notes (c) (i) (ii))     
 
Segment assets 

 
 17,322  14,073  77,368  108,763 

 
Segment liabilities  
 

 16,722  5,220  1,991  23,933 

Other segment information     
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment, intangibles and other non-current 
segment assets  15  338  1,673  2,026 

Depreciation and amortisation expense  470  550  559  1,579 

 
 
2007 

  Residential 
    aged care

  Community  
      services            Other              Total

 

           $’000           $’000            $’000             $’000

Segment revenue     
Fundraising income/bequests  24  810  538  1,372 
Other revenue  9,153  31,827  7,071  48,051 
Total segment revenue 
 

 9,177  32,637  7,609  49,423 

     
Segment result (notes (c) (i) (ii))  

 
 (1,024)  (1,234)  6,243  3,985 

Income tax expense 
 

 -  -  -  - 

Net surplus/(deficit) 
 

 (1,024)  (1,234)  6,243  3,985 

Segment assets and liabilities     
 
Segment assets 

 
 18,380  14,978  83,051  116,409 

 
Segment liabilities (notes (c) (i) (ii)) 
 

 17,914  5,273  1,979  25,166 

Other segment information     
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment, intangibles and other non-current 
segment assets  130  1,771  986  2,887 

Depreciation and amortisation expense  480  583  502  1,565 

     



The Benevolent Society
Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2008
(continued)

 

 
 41 2008 Annual Financial Report

 

4   Segment information (continued) 

(c) Notes to and forming part of the segment information 

(i) Accounting policies 
Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies of the Society as disclosed in note 1(b). 
Discontinuing operations are not required to be shown separately for the purposes of the Aged Care Act 1997 and therefore 
have not been disclosed as a segment. 

Segment revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are those that are directly attributable to a segment and the relevant 
portion that can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis.  Segment assets include all assets used by a segment and
consist primarily of operating cash, receivables, property, plant and equipment net of related provisions.  While most of these 
assets can be directly attributable to individual segments, the carrying amounts of certain assets used jointly by segments are
allocated based on reasonable estimates of usage.  Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade and other creditors, and 
employee benefits.  Segment assets and liabilities do not include income taxes. 

(ii) Inter-segment transfers 
Segment revenues, expenses and results include transfers between segments.  Such transfers are priced on an ‘arms-length’
basis and are eliminated on aggregation. 

5  Revenue 
  2008  2007 
  $’000  $’000 

(a) From continuing operations 
  

Government funding  30,680  22,608 
Client fees and charges  4,287  4,404 
Bequests and legacies  777  34 
Corporate funding  425  458 
Treasury funded superannuation  70  166 
Trusts and foundations (refer to note 24)  654  649 
Fundraising appeals and events (refer to note 24)  870  888 
Other income (refer to note 5(e))  788  2,209 

  38,551 
 

 31,416 
 

(b) From other revenue 

Interest   866  687 
Managed fund distributions  3,883  5,331 
  4,749  6,018 

  43,300 
 

 37,434 
 

(c)  Restricted grants 
  

Restricted grants received in advance  3,992  4,037 

Total revenue from continuing operations  47,292  41,471 

(d) From discontinuing operations 
  

Government funding  4,719  4,889 
Client fees and charges  3,004  2,835 
Resident retentions  229  228 
Total revenue from discontinuing operations (refer to note 9)  7,952  7,952 
   
Total revenue                55,244                49,423 
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5 Revenue (continued) 

 (e) Other income 

  2008  2007 
  $’000  $’000 
   
Rent  454  424 
Resident retentions  30  46 
Reimbursements   136  82 
Net profit on sale of property, plant & equipment  168  452 
Funds raised for Social Ventures Australia (refer note 21a)  -  1,205 

  788  2,209 

6 Expenses  
  2008  2007 
  $’000  $’000 

(a) Expenses from continuing operations   
   
Salaries and wages  28,933  24,372 
Administration expenses  2,310  1,760 
Information technology  331  356 
Fundraising and communications  360  221 
Travel and transport  1,124  499 
Client and brokerage expenditure  4,875  4,329 
Community partners  2,472  3,105 
Property and equipment maintenance  2,454  765 
Impairment of financial assets  3,070  - 
Depreciation  1,013  985 
Total expenses from continuing operations  46,942  36,392 

(b) Expenses from discontinuing operations   
   
Salaries and wages  7,256  6,947 
Administration expenses  92  90 
Information technology  42  39 
Fundraising and communications  2  6 
Travel and transport  42  38 
Client and brokerage expenditure  620  657 
Property and equipment maintenance  627  689 
Depreciation  566  580 
Total expenses from discontinuing operations (refer to note 9)  9,247  9,046 

Total expenses  

 

 

 

 

 

 

              56,189               45,438 
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6   Expenses (continued) 

(c) Surplus before income tax includes the following specific expenses: 
  

  2008  2007 
  $’000  $’000 

Depreciation   
Buildings  738  737 
Plant and equipment  841  828 

Total depreciation  1,579  1,565 

Rental expenses relating to operating leases   
Lease payments  464  450 

Net transfers to provisions   
Employee entitlements  343  541 

Impairment of trade receivables                       -                   112 
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible                     40                        - 
   

7  Current assets – Cash and cash equivalents  
  2008  2007 

 

 $’000  $’000 

Cash at bank and on hand  917  943 
Short term deposit  4,941  6,608 
  5,858  7,551 

The above figures are reconciled to cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statements. 

The Society holds these cash reserves, as they represent part resident bonds held, government and trust & foundation funding 
provided for a specific purpose or grants received in advance (refer note 13 & 16).  The related expenditure will not occur until 
a future period and the Society is restricted in its use of these funds by the terms and conditions of the funding. 

(a) Cash at bank and on hand 

These are interest bearing cheque accounts with an average rate of 4.75% (2007: 4.35%) 

(b) Short term deposit 

All deposits are with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia.  At call account rates were between 6.2% and 7.2% (2007: 5.55% 
and 6.2%).  Bank bill rates are between 7.41% and 7.65% (2007: 5.7% and 6.31%).  These bills have a maturity of 30 to 90 
days. 

(c) Interest rate risk exposure 

The Society’s exposure to interest rate risk is discussed in note 2. 
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8  Current assets – Trade and other receivables  
  2008  2007 

 

 $’000  $’000 

Trade receivables  1,586  1,301 
Provision for impairment of receivables (note (a))  (159)  (159) 
Residential contributions receivable (note(c))  1,927  2,558 
  3,354  3,700 

Prepayments  609  275 
                  3,963                  3,975 

(a) Impaired trade receivables 

As at 30 June 2008 current trade receivables of the Society with a nominal value of $159,000 (2007 - $159,000) were impaired. 
The amount of the provision was $159,000 (2007 - $159,000).  The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to clients 
who are in difficult economic situations.  Based on prior years, the Society expects the recovery of most of the receivable. 

The ageing of these receivables is as follows: 
  2008  2007 

 

 $’000  $’000 

1 to 3 months  -  - 
3 to 6 months  22  53 
Over 6 months  137  106 
  159  159 

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows: 

  2008  2007 

 

 $’000  $’000 

At 1 July  (159)  (47) 
Provision for impairment recognised during the year  (280)  (112) 
Unused amount reversed  280  - 
    (159)  (159) 

The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables has been included in 'community program expenditure' in 
the income statement.  Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of 
recovering additional cash. 

(b) Past due but not impaired 

As of 30 June 2008, there were no trade receivables that were past due but not impaired. 

(c) Resident contributions 

These receivables are loans from residents within our aged care facilities which are payable within 6 months of entry into the 
facility. 

(d) Foreign exchange and interest rate risk 

Information about the Society’s exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk in relation to trade and other receivables 
is provided in note 2. 

(e) Fair value and credit risk 

Due to the short-term nature of these receivables, their carrying amount is assumed to approximate their fair value. 
Refer to note 2 for more information on the risk management policy of the Society. 
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9 Discontinuing operations 

(a) Description 

On 19 May 2008 the Society commenced implementing the decision to cease operating its aged care nursing homes and 
hostels and related villages by initiating an active program to locate a buyer via an Expressions of Interest process followed by 
a Selective Tender Process.  

Financial information relating to the discontinuing operations for the year is set out below.  

(b) Financial performance and cash flow information  

The financial performance and cash flow information presented are for the year ended 30 June 2008 and the year ended 30 
June 2007. 

             2008         2007 

 
         $'000       $'000 

Revenue (note 5)    7,952  7,952  
Expenses (note 6)    9,247   9,046  
(Deficit) before income tax    (1,295)   (1,094)  

Income tax expense    -   -  
Deficit from discontinuing operations    (1,295)   (1,094)  

     
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities    (432)  (163)  
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities    10   (55) 
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities    (279)  361  
Net (decrease) increase in cash generated by the 
division    (701)  143  

(c) Carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2008 are:  

             2008  

 
          $'000  

Property, plant and equipment    12,171  
Total assets    12,171   

     
Provision for employee benefits    936   
Total liabilities    936   

Net assets    11,235   
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10 Non-current assets – Receivables  
  2008  2007 

 
 $’000  $’000 

Receivables  100  100 

The receivable outstanding at the end of the current and prior year is an unsecured loan to an ex-resident.  This receivable is 
repayable in full when the ex-resident vacates their current residential facility. 

(a) Impaired receivables and receivables past due 

None of the non-current receivables are impaired or past due but not impaired. 

(b) Fair values 

The fair value and carrying value of non-current receivables are as follows: 

                 2008               2008                  2007               2007 

 
 Carrying 
 amount 

      Fair  
    value 

            Carrying  
             amount 

      Fair  
    value 

  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000 

Receivables  100  100  100  100 

(c) Risk exposure 

Information about the Society’s exposure to credit risk and interest rate risk is provided in note 2. 

11 Non-current assets – Other financial assets 
  2008  2007 

 
 $'000  $'000 

Other financial assets available for sale 
   
At fair value:   
Managed funds at the end of the year were invested as follows:   
 
Medium term managed fund investments:   
ANZ Executors and Trustees Company Limited 
 - Australian equities and debt securities  11,698  13,293 

MLC (NCIT) Conservative Trust 
 - Conservative trust  15,482  15,640 
 
Long term managed fund investments:   
Russell Investment Group 
 - Balanced fund  24,213  27,700 
At end of year  51,393 

 
 56,633 

(a) Managed funds 

The medium-term managed fund investments are required to be in excess of or equal to  all residential contributions (not 
already accounted for in the cash reserves) and new initiatives as informed by the strategic plan.  The medium term portfolio is 
readily realisable. 

The long-term managed fund investments comprise financial assets that the Society wishes to invest over the long-term, to 
maintain, or increase the real value of the total managed fund investments. 
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11   Non-current assets – Other financial assets (continued) 

(b) Investments in related parties 

Refer to note 21 for information on Available-for-sale financial assets held in related parties. 

(c) Non-current assets pledged as security 

The Society does not hold any non-current assets pledged as security. 

(d) Impairment and risk exposure 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the managed funds classified as 
available-for-sale. 

Managed funds had an impairment of $8,538,000 during the year due to declines in global financial markets (refer note 2). 

All available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Australian currency.  For an analysis of the sensitivity of 
available-for-sale financial assets to price and interest rate risk refer to note 2. 

  2008  2007 

 
 $'000  $'000 

Movements   
At beginning of year  56,633  36,199 
Additions  341  5,400 
Reinvestment of distributions  2,957  4,011 
Redemption  -  (5,031) 
Reclassification of current assets  -  14,173 
Impairment-asset revaluation reserve (refer note 16)  (5,468)  1,881 
Impairment –income statement  (3,070)  - 
At end of year  51,393  56,633 

12 Non-current assets – Property, plant and equipment  

2008  Land  Buildings 
 Plant and 
 equipment  Total 

 

 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 

Gross carrying amount     
Balance as at 1 July 2007  26,082  22,371  7,316  55,769 
Additions  -  1,316  710  2,026 
Disposals  -  (44)  (1,421)              (1,465) 
Discontinuing operations              (2,771)            (12,054)               (1,137)               (15,962) 
Balance as at 30 June 2008  23,311  11,589                5,468     40,368 

Accumulated depreciation     
Balance as at 1 July 2007  -  (3,735)  (3,884)  (7,619) 
Disposals  -  5  313  318 
Discontinuing operations                        -                2,910                   880                3,790 
Depreciation expense  -  (738)  (841)  (1,579) 
Balance as at 30 June 2008  -  (1,558)  (3,532)  (5,090) 

Net book value 2008  23,311  10,031  1,936  35,278 
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12   Non-current assets – Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

2007  Land  Buildings 
 Plant and 
 equipment  Total 

                $'000                $'000                $'000                $'000 
Gross carrying amount     
Balance as at 1 July 2006  27,219  22,929  7,571  57,719 
Additions  470  471  1,946  2,887 
Disposals  (1,607)  (1,029)  (2,201)  (4,837) 
Balance as at 30 June 2007  26,082  22,371  7,316  55,769 

Accumulated depreciation     
Balance as at 1 July 2006  -  (3,171)  (4,717)  (7,888) 
Disposals  -  173  1,661  1,834 
Depreciation expense  -  (737)  (828)  (1,565) 
Balance as at 30 June 2007  -  (3,735)  (3,884)  (7,619) 

Net book value 2007  26,082  18,636  3,432  48,150 

(a) Assets in the course of construction  

The carrying amounts of the assets disclosed above include the following expenditure recognised in relation to property, plant
and equipment which is in the course of construction and development: 

  Land  Buildings 
 Plant and 
 equipment  Total 

 
 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 

 
2008  -  1,362  25  1,387 
     
2007  -  367  -  367 
 
Expenditure of $932,000 (2007: $367,000) has been recognised for Apartments for Life at Bondi.  Expenditure of $430,000 
(2007: nil) has also been recognised for the Hurstville offices. 

(b) Leased assets 

The Society did not have any furniture, fittings and equipment under a finance lease (2007: nil). 

(c) Valuations of land and buildings  

Land and buildings were deemed at cost as at transition date (1 July 2004).  A valuation in May 2008 showed recoverable 
values as greater than carrying values thus an impairment loss did not occur, and no change in land and building values was 
required (refer note 1e). 

Buildings on crown land are valued at $8,934,000 (2007: $8,934,000).  Crown land is valued at nil (2007: nil). 

(d) Use of non-current assets  

At the end of the financial year the Society’s non-current assets were used for the following purposes: 

  2008  2007 
  $’000  $’000 

 
Residential aged care facilities & related villages held for sale (discontinuing operations)              12,171                       - 
Residential aged care facilities (includes nursing homes and hostels)  -  15,634 
Community  services (includes women’s and children's programs, aged care community 
programs and villages)  7,225  14,781 
Other activities (includes administration offices, information technology, buildings used for 
community programs rented on an ‘arms length’ basis and land for redevelopment)  28,053  17,735 

  47,449  48,150 
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12   Non-current assets – Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

(e) Impairment loss and compensation 

There was no impairment loss during the 2008 financial year. 

13 Current liabilities – Trade and other payables 
  
  2008  2007 

 
 $'000  $'000 

Trade payables  2,823  1,578 
Other payables (a)  1,555  1,126 
Government grants received in advance  -  2,112 
  4,378  4,816 

(a) Amounts not expected to be settled within the next 12 months 

Other payables includes Trust monies and Deposits held of $124,000.  The entire obligation is presented as current, since the
Society does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement.  Based on past experience, the Society does not expect all 
trust monies to be spent within the next 12 months. 

(b) Government grants received in advance 

There is no liability in 2008 as there was no funding received prior to commencement of a new service during the year. 

(c) Risk exposure 

Information about the Society’s exposure to foreign exchange risk is provided in note 2. 

14 Current liabilities – Provisions 
  
  2008  2007 

 
 $'000  $'000 

Employee benefits - annual leave  1,640  1,982 
Employee benefits - long service leave  284  519 
  1,924  2,501 

(a) Amounts not expected to be settled within the next 12 months 

The current provision includes accruals for annual leave.  The entire obligation is presented as current, since the Society does
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement.  However, based on past experience, the Society does not expect all 
employees to take the full amount of accrued leave within the next 12 months.  
 
The current provision for long service leave includes all unconditional entitlements where employees have completed the 
required period of service and also those where employees are entitled to pro-rata payments in certain circumstances. The 
entire amount is presented as current, since the Society does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement. However, 
based on past experience, the Society does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued long service leave or
require payment within the next 12 months.  
 
The following amounts reflect leave that is not to be expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months. 

  2008  2007 

 
 $’000  $’000 

Long Service leave obligation expected to be settled after 12 months  121  410 
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15 Non-current liabilities – Provisions 
  2008  2007 

 
 $'000  $'000 

Employee benefits – long service leave  630  640 

16 Reserves and retained surplus 
  2008  2007 

 
 $'000  $'000 

(a) Asset revaluation reserve 
  

Other financial assets revaluation reserve  -  5,468 

Movements: 
  

Balance 1 July 2007  5,468  3,587 
Impairment (refer note 11)  (5,468)  1,881 
Balance 30 June 2008                -  5,468 

  2008  2007 

 
 $'000  $'000 

(b) Restricted grants reserve  5,560  5,478 

Movements: 
  

Balance 1 July 2007  5,478  5,897 
Transfer to accumulated surplus of restricted grant expenditure during the year  (3,910)  (4,456) 
Transfer from accumulated surplus of restricted grants received but unexpended during 
the year  3,992  4,037 
Balance 30 June 2008  5,560  5,478 

  2008  2007 

 
 $'000  $'000 

(c) Retained surplus  79,270  80,297 

Movements in retained surplus were as follows: 

Balance 1 July 2007  80,297  75,896 
Prior year adjustment  -  (3) 
Net (deficit)/surplus for the year                  (945)  3,985 
Transfer to accumulated surplus of restricted grant expenditure during the year  3,910  2,344 
Transfer from accumulated surplus of restricted grants received but unexpended during 
the year  _(3,992)  (1,925) 
Balance 30 June 2008     79,270  80,297 
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16 Reserves and retained surplus (continued) 

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves  

(i) Other financial assets revaluation reserve 
Changes in the fair value of managed fund investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are taken to the other 
financial assets revaluation reserve, as described in note 1(i). 

(ii) Restricted grants reserve 
The restricted grants reserve has been set up as a result of the need to comply with AASB 1004 Contributions which requires 
Government, trust and foundation funding to be recognised as revenue when received. The reserve represents grants 
received during this financial year and previous financial years which have been provided for a specific purpose. The related 
expenditure the grants are intended to compensate will not occur until a future period and the Society is restricted in its use of
these funds by the terms and conditions of the grant. 

17 Key management personnel disclosures  

(a) Directors 

The following persons were non-executive directors of the Society during the financial year: 

William A.H. Webster (President)   (since 15 October 2002) 
Sam Weiss (Vice President)   (since 14 July 2005) 
Tanya Gilerman (Honorary Treasurer)  (since 15 March 2005) 
Robert Fitzgerald   (since 20 November 2006) 
Margaret M. Hetherton   (since 21 October 1997) 
Denise G. Lynch   (since 9 November 1995) 
Gary Moore  (since 20 November 2006) 
Philip Myles  (since 12 September 1996) 
Julie A. Rosenberg   (since 20 March 2001) 
Simone C. Schwarz   (since 20 October 1997) 

(b) Directors compensation 

Directors of the Society are not remunerated, though expenses incurred on Society business may be reimbursed. 
 

(c) Other key management personnel 

The following persons also had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Society, 
directly or indirectly, during the financial year: 

Richard Spencer Chief Executive Officer 
Wendy Miller Chief Financial Officer 
General managers  
Keith Bryant Social Initiatives 
Kerri-ann Jones  Human Resources (until 8 May 2008) 
Annette Michaux Social Policy & Research 
Sheri Norton Corporate Services (since October 2007) 
Barbara Squires Ageing 
Maree Walk Operations 
Liz Yeo Acting Human Resources (since 9 May 2008) 
 
The above persons were also key management persons during the year ended 30 June 2007, excluding the Acting General 
Manager of Human Resources and the General Manager of Corporate Services. 

(d) Other key management personnel compensation 
  2008  2007 

 
 $  $ 

Short term employee benefits (total compensation)  1,209,860  1,361,329 
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18 Remuneration of auditors 

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditors of the Society, its related practices 
and non-related audit firms: 

  2008  2007 

 
 $  $ 

(a) Assurance services 
  

Audit services   
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm    

Audit of financial reports and other audit work under the Corporations Act 2001  79,148  51,084 
Review of government grant financial reports  15,490  15,000 

Total remuneration for audit services  94,638  66,084 

(b) Advisory services 
  

PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm   
Review of business continuity  24,210  - 

Total remuneration for advisory services  24,210  - 

It is the Society’s practice to employ PricewaterhouseCoopers on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where 
PricewaterhouseCoopers’ expertise and experience with the Society are important.  These assignments are principally indirect
tax advice or systems advice.  It is the Society’s policy to seek competitive tenders for all major consulting projects.   

(c) External Audit Policy 

It is the Society’s external audit policy to not  exceed the ratio of audit work to non-audit work fees of 1:1. 

19 Contingencies  
The Society had no contingent assets or contingent liabilities at 30 June 2008 including in respect of claims, contingent 
consideration, guarantees, associates & joint ventures. 

20 Commitments  

(a) Capital commitments   

The Society had capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities for the fit-out of the 
Hurstville Offices of $121,000 (2007: nil). This contracted capital expenditure is payable within one year. 

(b) Operating lease commitments  

  
  2008  2007 

 
 $’000  $’000 

Commitments in relation to rental of premises contracted for at the reporting date but not 
recognised as liabilities, payable:   
Within 1 year  958  442 
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  2,514  255 
Later than 5 years  443  - 
  3,915  697 
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20 Commitments (continued) 

(c) Repairs and maintenance: property 

The Society had no contractual obligation for future repairs and maintenance in existence at the reporting date but not 
recognised as liabilities. 

(d) Remuneration commitments 

The Society had no commitments for the payment of salaries and other remuneration under long-term employment contracts in 
existence at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities. 

21 Related party transactions  

(a) Social Ventures Australia 

The Society has a 25% interest in Social Ventures Australia Limited. Social Ventures Australia Limited is a company limited by
guarantee, incorporated and operating in Australia. 

In 2008 transactions between the Society and Social Ventures Australia Limited comprise Social Ventures providing funding of 
$50,000 (2007 $128,000) to fund the Home share program.  There was a change in the nature of the relationship between  
Social Ventures Australia Limited and the Society from 1 July 2007.  No services were provided on a cost recovery basis during 
2008 (2007 $1,205,000). 
  

(b) Transactions with a director 

Mr William A.H. Webster is a non-executive director of MLC Investments Limited which acts as the responsible entity of MLC 
(NCIT) Conservative Trust in which the Society invests part of its investment portfolio. Mr Webster has declared his interest 
and takes no part in Board decisions regarding this investment. 
 
This investment is based on normal commercial terms and conditions. 
 
The aggregate amounts of these transactions relating to a director of the Society: 

  2008  2007 

 
 $  $ 

Amounts recognised as revenue:   
Managed fund distributions – MLC (NCIT) Conservative Trust  1,021,285  1,367,372 
   
Amounts recognised as assets as at balance date:     
Non-current assets   
Managed funds – MLC (NCIT) Conservative Trust  15,481,948  15,639,521 

Ms Tanya Gilerman is a partner of KPMG Sydney’s Audit and Risk Advisory Services. The Society has engaged KPMG to 
perform a specific contract. Ms Gilerman has declared her interest and takes no part in Board decisions regarding this contract.
 
This contract is an arms length transaction and based on normal commercial terms and conditions. 
 

(c) Key management personnel 

Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 17. 

22 Events occurring after the balance sheet date  

There has not been any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly 
affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Society, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the 
Society in future financial years. 
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23 Reconciliation of (deficit)/surplus to net cash inflow from operating activities  
  
  2008  2007 

 
 $’000  $’000 

(Deficit)/surplus for the year  (945)  3,985 
Resident contribution retentions  (265)  (322) 
Managed fund investment Income  (507)  (4,010) 
(Profit)/loss on sale of non-current assets  (122)  (394) 
Depreciation of non-current assets  1,579  1,565 
Change in operating assets and liabilities   

Decrease/(Increase)in trade debtors   99  (374) 
(Decrease)/increase in trade creditors  (585)  2,242 
(Decrease)/increase in other current provisions  318  (151) 
(Decrease)/increase in other non-current provisions  112  133 

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities  (316)  2,674 

24 Additional information furnished under the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the 
Regulations 

(a) Details of aggregate gross income and expenditure of fundraising appeals 

  
  2008  2007 

 
 $’000  $’000 

Gross proceeds of fundraising from trusts and foundations  654  649 
Gross proceeds of fundraising appeals and events  870  888 
Total proceeds of fundraising (i)  1,524  1,537 
Total direct costs of fundraising appeals and events  (282)  (199) 
Net surplus from fundraising  1,242  1,338 

(i) Total proceeds of fundraising exclude bequests. 

(b) Statement showing how funds received were applied to charitable purposes 

  
  2008  2007 

 
 $’000  $’000 

Net surplus from fundraising 
 

 1,242  1,338 

This was applied to charitable purposes in the following manner: 
   
Community program expenditure  40,799  43,965 
Administration expenses (i)  6,143  1,274 
Total cost of community programs  46,942  45,239 
Discontinuing operations expenditure (refer note 6)  9,247  - 
Total charitable purpose expenditure  56,189  45,239 
Shortfall in funds available from fundraising  54,947  43,901 

 (i) Administration expenses include depreciation, bequest expenditure, asset impairment and a portion of indirect overheads 
including Finance, Corporate Support, Information Technology, Asset Management, Social, Policy & Research and Marketing.
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24  Additional information furnished under the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the 
Regulations (continued) 

(c) Shortfall of $54,947,000  financed from the following sources: 

  
  2008  2007 

 
 $’000  $’000 

Government grants and subsidies  39,467  34,595 
Client fees  7,291  7,239 
Bequests and legacies   777  34 
(Deficit) for the year  945  - 
Interest, dividend and managed fund distribution revenue  4,749  2,033 
Other income  1,718  - 
Shortfall in funds available from fundraising  54,947  43,901 

(d) Fundraising appeals conducted during the financial year  

Direct mail appeals included three mail appeals to raise donations for our children’s services. Unsolicited donations were also 
received through two editions of our supporter newsletter, Arena, and other donor communications as well as donations given
to our program sites. Special events included the Art and Eros dinner in May 2008 and funds were also raised by events held 
by other volunteer committees such as the Scarba Volunteers Family Fund.  Applications were made to a number of Trusts 
and Foundations to gain funding for various programs. Corporate support was given through payroll giving programs and 
sponsorships for Sydney Leadership participants. 

(e) Fundraising ratios 

        2008       2007 

 
$'000 % $'000 % 

Total cost of fundraising / 
Gross income from fundraising 
 

282 / 
1,524 

 
18 
 

199 / 
1,537 

 
13 
 

Net surplus from fundraising / 
Gross income from fundraising 
 

1,242 / 
1,524 

 
82 
 

1,338 / 
1,537 

 
87 
 

Total cost of  community programs / 
Total expenditure 
 

40,799 / 
56,189 

 
73 
 

43,901 / 
45,438 

 
96 
 

Total cost of community programs /  
Total revenue from continuing activities 
 

40,799 / 
47,292 

 
86 
 

43,901 / 
47,498 

 
92 
 

These comparisons and percentages are required to be disclosed under the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the 
Regulations. 
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Many of today’s essential community services were pioneered by The Benevolent 
Society over the past 195 years. We have an extensive archive in the Mitchell 
Library, State Library of NSW.

Here are some of the milestones in our history.

1820 – 1866
1820: The Benevolent Society initiated the first social service for motherhood in Australia, introducing volunteer •	
district nursing.
1821: The Benevolent Society Asylum opened for the ‘poor, blind, aged and infirm’ at Sydney’s Central Railway site.•	
1852: The Benevolent Society formed the NSW Society for the Relief of Destitute Children.•	
1858: Vast numbers of destitute miners returning from the goldfields were assisted by The Benevolent Society.•	
1866: Australia’s first maternity hospital was established by The Benevolent Society.•	

1877 – 1907
1877: This hospital became a teaching school for nurses and midwives.•	
1879: We successfully lobbied for the introduction of free legal aid.•	
1888: The hospital became a teaching hospital for medical students.•	
1892: The Benevolent Society played an instrumental role in forming the Children’s Protection Act which outlawed •	
child labour.
1895: The old age pension was introduced, the first of its kind in the world.•	
1905: Australia’s first Women’s Hospital, The Royal, opened in Paddington, Sydney.•	
1907: Infant mortality was reduced by The Benevolent Society pioneering the use of pasteurised milk.•	

1912 – 1931
1912: The Benevolent Society established the first antenatal clinic in the British Empire.•	
1915: We provided relief for families of men fighting in the First World War.•	
1917: We established Scarba House in Bondi as a welfare home for women and children.•	
1929: A new Royal Hospital for Women building opened.•	
1930: Our Depression Food Shelters provided essential emergency relief.•	
1931: Royal Hospital for Women became a centre for medical research.•	

1944 – 1979
1944: We built a new kindergarten at Scarba House.•	
1947: First Post Natal Clinic established at Royal Hospital for Women.•	
1949: Australia’s first cancer detection clinic opened at the Royal.•	
1962: Diagnostic Ultrasound procedure developed at the Royal.•	
1964: First Village for the Aged established in Allambie Heights.•	
1968: The Benevolent Society Adoption Agency was opened.•	
1970: We provided support services to enable single mothers to keep their babies.•	
1979: The Benevolent Society defined its objective as serving all vulnerable and disadvantaged groups in the •	
community.
1970s: Residential services for older people developed across Sydney.•	

1983 – 1999
1983: Birth Centre opened at the Royal Hospital for Women.•	
1980s: Leading edge approaches to preventing child abuse and neglect were developed through Early Intervention •	
Programs.
1990: NSW Post Adoption Resource Centre was established.•	
1993: We launched new community programs to help older people stay living at home.•	
1995: We developed innovative women’s health services in South West Sydney.•	
1999: Sydney Leadership launched, a program designed to bring about social change through innovation and cross •	
sectoral, collaborative leadership.

2002 – 2008
2002: Launch of Social Ventures Australia in partnership with the AMP Foundation, WorkVentures and The Smith •	
Family. Visit the SVA website.
2002: Launch of Rural Leadership Program in New England/ North West region of New South Wales.•	
2004: The Benevolent Society responded to the Senate Committee’s Report, Forgotten Australians: A report on •	
Australians who experienced institutional or out-of-home care as children.
2005: Our Partnerships in Early Childhood program and Central Coast Networks of Practice Project received a •	
‘Highly Commended’ award at the National Child Protection Awards 2005 at Parliament House in Canberra.
2006: Saver Plus and MoneyMinded, the two flagship programs of the Financial Literacy and Inclusion Partnership, •	
were recognised nationally when ANZ received a Special Award in the 2006 Prime Minister’s Awards for Excellence 
in Community Business Partnerships.
2007: The Benevolent Society commenced providing Brighter Futures Early Intervention services in eight locations •	
across NSW.
2008: The Benevolent Society commenced operation of an Early Years Centre in Queensland and commenced •	
programs to assist people with mental illness.
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